TOWN OF LUDLOW, VT
SELECT BOARD
REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2024
6:00 PM

HEALD AUDITORIUM

Select Board- September 2, 2024 Zoom Link

Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile
+13126266799,963523643374#,,,,*411479# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,963523643374#,,,,*411479# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh2l2

AGENDA

1. Call to Order:

2. Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda:

3. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting(s):
a. August 5, 2024

4. Comments from Citizens:

5. Department Head Reports:
a. August 2024

6. South Hill Crossroad Speed Limit Discussion:

7. Comments from Tree Warden, Phil carter:



https://zoom.us/j/96352364337?pwd=N2k1RTIycVMyQXhjbThWcGJwWGJQQT09
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh2l2

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Black River Action Team Presentation from Kelly Stetner:

Recreation Economy for Rural Communities Application:

Review of Better Roads Program for Road Erosion Inventory Grant:

Ryan Silvestri from new England Municipal Consultants, to Discuss Potential Reappraisal Process:

Review and Possibly Approve the Release of ARPA Funds:
a. LAST
b. Fletcher Farms

Approval of Requests/Licenses/Permits:
a. Blue Duck Deli Liquor License
b. Ludlow Rotary Club- Depot St. Closure for Chili Cook Off

Consider Approval of Patricia Archambault Local SEVCA Board:

Action to Consider Adoption of New Rules of Procedure for Select Board Meetings:

Discussion Regarding Adoption of 250" Anniversary Commemoration Resolution:

Municipal Manager Updates:

Other Business:

Possible Items for Next Meeting: (October 7, 2024)

Sign Warrant Orders:

Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues:

Adjourn:



PRELIMINARY MINUTES

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

August 5, 2024

HEALD AUDITORIUM
6:00 P.M.

Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile
+13126266799, 963 5236 4337#,,,,411479# US (Chicago)
+16469313860, 963 5236 4337#,,,,*411479# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh212

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Brett Sanderson, Chairman Justin Hyjek George Tucker, Jr.
Scott Baitz Noah Schmidt
STAFF PRESENT:
Brendan McNamara Stephanie Grover Ben Whalen
OTHERS PRESENT:
Eric Alden Shon Racicot Jill Tofferi
Tim Banker Ben Robinson George Tucker, Sr.
Tim Calabrese Carter Robinson Sherry Tucker
Nick Gilberti Melissa Rockhill Steve Webbersen
Jim O’Malley Kelly Stettner Kevin Winter

1. CALL TO ORDER

A. Brett Sanderson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. He then led the meeting in the Pledge of
Allegiance.

2. CONSIDERATION OF ANY CHANGES, ADDITIONS OR REMOVALS TO THE AGENDA

A. Brendan McNamara advised the following changes:
i. Strike Item #8 — Review of Local Hazard Mitigation Plan — Brendan McNamara advised that the
plan is still in Vermont State review.
ii. Move Item 11 - Trail Association to after Dept. Head Reports
B. MOTION by Scott Baitz and seconded by George Tucker. Jr. to approve changes in agenda.
Motion passed unanimously.

NOTE: MINUTES WILL BE IN ORDER OF AGENDA




Board of Selectmen August 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 9

3. APPROVE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

A,

B.

Brett Sanderson advised that the minutes to be approved are for the following meeting:

i, July 1, 2024 — Regular Meeting

ii. July 12, 2024 — Special Meeting
MOTION by Justin Hvjek and seconded by George Tucker. Jr. to approve the minutes as listed
above as presented. Motion passed unanimously.

4. COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS

A.

B.

Jewell Brook Dam Spillway
i. Jim O’Malley said that he went to the dam and noted that the cut is still there and asked for an
update on the progress and if there is an estimate for the repairs.

ii. Brendan McNamara said the estimate to fix both 3 and 4 is $750,000.000

iii. Jim O’Malley said it seems like the amount is more than he thought it would be.
iv. Brendan McNamara said that they have approval for the designs. He said that we are at the
mercy of the Federal government with the 100% funding.

v. Jim O’Malley asked if the Federal Govt. promised the funds and is it wise to rely on an entity
that is in debt. He suggested that the town bypass the Federal Govt. and do it ourselves. He said
that after Irene, people got together and started clearing up. The Select Board should consider
doing it ourselves.

Agreement with Okemo

i. Melissa Rockhill asked if there is a decision about the agreement with Okemo to use their spaces
for persons displaced after floods or other disasters.

ii. Brendan McNamara said the agreement has gone back to Okemo for review.

5. DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS — JULY 2024

A

No comments

6. RULES OF PROCEDURE

A

Mmoo w

2

Brendan McNamara said that this discussion was started at last month’s meeting. He said that he
reviewed the comments and put the changes on the agenda for the September meeting.

George Tucker, Jr. said that he has read Roberts’ Rules and noted that the VLCT draft had pulled out
the important stuff and condensed it. It is worthy to entertain adopting it.

Justin Hyjek agreed.

Noah Schmidt asked if the Select Board adopts it, will it also apply to the other boards.

George Tucker, Jr. said this is geared to Select Boards and Trustees. He said the DRB acts as a court.
He said what the VLCT has published if readable and could be handed out at meetings.

Justin Hyjek said that he attended the Open Law Meeting in May and they said that small towns are
crazy to try to follow all of Roberts’ Rules. VLCT crafted this to withstand lawyer scrutiny.
MOTION bv Scott Baitz and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to put this on the September
agenda for Review and Possible acceptance. Motion passed unanimously.




Board of Selectmen August 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 9

7. TREE WARDEN COMMENTS

A.  Brendan McNamara said that he has been working with Phil Carter looking into tree issues in
Town. He said that there are a lot of things that can be included in the Tree Warden’s
position. We will continue to formulate a plan, but it is not in the budget for this year. We
are working with Buildings and Grounds on issues and putting together a budget for FY2026.
There are a lot of grants available. He will have a proposal for this board for plans within the
next few months. He said there is one tree at the entrance to the school and also a large pine
that need to be removed. We will plan on what to replace them with.

B.  George Tucker, Jr. said he spoke to Phil Carter and there is a big grant opportunity this fall
and we should get some projects together. Invasive species are part of the Hazard Mitigation
Plan. We should have some project for the next month.

8. REVIEW AND COMMENTS ON 2023-2028 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

A. Item struck for State Review

9. ARPA FUNDING ALLOCATION

A. Brendan McNamara said that he has received three requests for funding:

B. STOP LIGHT REPLACEMENT
i. Brendan McNamara said we have a pending quote from Lafaso to replace the light and controls
for $28,000. The controls are $12,000 to $15,000 and are about 25 years old. They are not
working properly.
il. Justin Hyjek said it is well worth maintaining them and he is in favor.
iii. Brendan McNamara said if they use $20,000, he can absorb the remaining $8,000.
iv. Noah Schmidt asked if this would go out to bid.
v. Brendan McNamara said it will have to be replaced and not go to bid as it is a specialty item
vi. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Scott Baitz not to allocate ARPA funds but to
proceed with the replacement of the stoplight. Motion passed unanimously.

C. FLETCHER MEMORIAL LIBRARY
i. Jill Tofferi said that in 2023, the library received a grant of $75,000 from the Preservation Trust
of VT and the library is currently waiting final acceptance to be listed on the Federal “National
Historic Registry.” She gave details of the following breakdown of the major group of projects:

Phase 1

Limestone Fireplace (2) $6,600

Main Granite Steps $10,600

Mosaic Floor $53,000

Youth Exterior stairs $28,000

Architect fees for above 4 projects  *$7,500

4 Project Total: $105,700 After grant remaining balance due $30,700.00

Contractor costs for all above $98,000.00



Board of Selectmen
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

il.

ii.
v.

August 5, 2024
Page 4 of 9

Architect fees for above 4 projects  $7,500.00*

*Preservation Trust of Vermont will not pay Architectural Fees

Jill Tofferi continued, explaining that Phase 2, projected at $625,000 will fully restore our
marble staircase and curved marble wall and all support that is failing. She is hoping for a HUD
grant via the VT Department of Libraries. She gave background of the library and current
projects, including working with children and also a mobile laptop van that will help people who
are not computer literate with their needs. Their silent, online auction this year, netted $7,000.
Justin Hyjek said the library is one of the best assets in the town.,

Noah Schmidt said this request fills all of the boxes of what we are looking for it is well planned
and the library is a great asset.

MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Scott Baitz to approve the allocation of
$30.700 for the Fletcher Memorial Librarv as requested. Motion passed unanimously.

D. LUDLOW EMERGENCY SERVICES (LES)

L

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Vii.

viii,

ix.

X1.
XIi.

Chief Whalen advised that the LES are requesting funds to cover costs of moving repeaters for
the Police, and Fire Departments. He said that currently, the 2 EMS departments have 3 separate
repeaters and 3 separate frequencies. He said the repeater for the Ambulance is located on top of
Okemo, and the other 2 are located on Commonwealth Avenue. He has been doing radio checks
and determining where the coverage umbrella for each is. In high hazard, the reception for Main
and Depot is poor. The concept is for the Fire Department repeater to be relocated to Okemo
and combine, on the same repeater as Ambulance. This will also take some of the burden off the
dispatcher and enable better communication for Ambulance and Fire and allow them to work
more together. They want to create a dedicated tower for all town services. He said the Police
Department has already decided to move its repeater to Okemo. There will also be a cost
reduction if we do the Fire repeater at the same time as the Police. The vendor will only have to
make one visit. The repeaters have not been maintained and we don’t have a contract on them.
If we get news for EMS and maintenance for 3 years, the cost will be $8,000.00

Brendan McNamara said the Fire Department is strapped. They are looking for $50,000 to
defray the cost of budgeting for a Command Vehicle for the fire department. He is currently
using his own vehicle.

George Tucker, Jr. asked if they are asking for $58,000. He said this board made the decision
for have a full- time fire chief and we knew that there would be added costs. This is an
Emergency Service.

Noah Schmidt said the repeaters make sense, but he thinks that the vehicle should be in the
budget.

Brendan McNamara said it needs to be done, but we don’t know about funding. He suggested
$30,000.00.

Brendan McNamara said this has to happen. The Chief has to respond from his house and go
directly to an incident. He is also responding to ambulance calls.

Brett Sanderson has not given to the EMS this year.

Justin Hyjek said that our town has always voted to support EMS. We voted to put the
Ambulance service into the town budget. Come the next budget, the town will be on board. The
repeaters need to be changed.

Brett Sanderson said there is a liability issue.

George Tucker, Jr. said this community will benefit for local call response. This is a good
candidate for funds. We did create this position and we can’t wait a year

Noah Schmidt said the Rec department always gets cut at budget time and EMS does not.
George Tucker, Jr. said he sees both sides and noted that the tax rate did go down.



Board of Selectmen August 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 9

xiii. Brendan McNamara said we have $93,726 left.
xiv. Justin Hyjek said we can’t approve $46,000 plus the fire department.
xv. George Tucker, Jr. said we try to give to as many projects as possible. The town should not be a
major funder of a project.
xvi. Scott Baitz said that the Rec department is cut every year, but this is also important.
xvii. Sherry Tucker implored the board to move on this tonight.

xviii. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Scott Baitz to approve the allocation of

$58.000 for the EMS as requested. Motion passed 4 to one — Noah Schmidt nav.

10. CLASS 4 ROADS DISCUSSION

A,

m o

2

TEQ

R

ozzr

™

Brendan McNamara said that there are 2.34 miles of Class 4 roads in town, portions of: North Hill
Pent to Chapman, Preedom Hill, Godfrey (to the water tank), Pennel (off South Hill), the end of West
Hill to the dam and .08 of Spruce. The total of all roads in Ludlow is 65.57 miles. We have been
dlscussmg this for the last 2 meetings. He said there are 3 options:
i. Institute a policy for Class 4 roads with oversight for speed, signs, and types of vehicles, as well
as enforcement.
ii. Reclassify this portion of Preedom Hill as a trail. The town will not receive funding for it (it is
.5 miles). The town retains ownership, but no maintenance. By statute, no vehicles.
iii. Have no policy — he spoke to the Police Chief and Game Warden and asked them to increase
oversight on the Class 4 part of Preedom — ATV’s are illegal.
George Tucker, Jr. said that they would need a public hearing to institute a policy. It would be the
quicker process.
Brendan McNamara said once a policy is in place, we can specify types of vehicles. We can have a
policy, but it is not a magic policy. We can say no ATVs, but they will be there. The Game Warden
and Police are on board to increase visibility.
Scott Baitz said we don’t even enforce Class 3 roads.
MOTION bv Justin Hvjek and seconded by Noah Schmidt to reclassify the portion of Preedom
Hill currently the Class 4 portion to a trail status.
Steve Webbersen said he likes the idea of reclassifying it to a trail. Asked if we can put boulders
there.
Brendan McNamara said that is a question that needs to be clarified and he will have to discuss it with
EMS staff. We can explore it.
Steve Webbersen said that enforcement is the issue.
Brendan McNamara said that any option will need enforcement. He said there will be a house built
on North Preedom Hill — 500 feet down from the gate and we would have to move the “trail” down.
Class 4 roads have private maintenance.
Noah Schmidt asked if there is a better way to still be discussed.
Brendan McNamara said he sees validity for all 3 options, but it all comes down to enforcement and
he can guarantee there will still be problems.
Noah Schmidt suggested having a cruiser sit there for an hour.
Scott Baitz said if we don’t do all 5, we should not do any of them.
George Tucker, Jr. said that a policy can be rapidly changed.
Melissa Rockhill said there is a ROW between North and South Preedom Hill Roads that is not
maintained and suggested they have the Police look at that area. Whatever decision this board makes,
will set a precedent for all.
Justin Hyjek said he understands the need for a policy, he added that the road was built in the 1940°s
as a walk.
Steve Webbersen said it has not been used since 1947 for vehicles.




Board of Selectmen August 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 9

11.

R. George Tucker, Jr. said it is legal for ATVs to ride on Class 4 roads, but not on Class 3 roads. He said
that in this case, to get to the Class 4 portion, from cither direction, you have to ride on a Class 3 road.

S. Noah Schmidt said if there were a Class 4 road, off of Main Street, it would probably have
enforcement. He suggested spending a couple hours a month having a cruiser there.

T. Scott Baitz said that he lives on West Hill Road. It has a 25 MPH speed limit, and people do 50
MPH. It is steep. Why should a cruiser be on Preedom Hill and not West Hill?

U.  Justin Hyjek asked the width of a trail.

V. Brendan McNamara said that is a gray area.

W.  George Tucker, Jr. said that gates and boulders are under the purview of the town. If an injury
occurred, we would need access. No gates are allowed.

X. Justin Hyjek asked how EMS would access it.

Y. Ben Whalen said Ludlow does not have the equipment. They have a side-by-side ATV, but with a
stretcher.

Z. Stephanie Grover said the ambulance will go down some Class 4 roads. We may have to back in %

mile — or as far as we can.

AA. Chief Whalen said that he and Chief Kolenda will walk Preedom Hill and determine best access.

BB. George Tucker, Jr. said the DRB has discussed access to the bike path, but no matter what we do, it
still comes down to enforcement.

CC. Vermont State Statute 19 grants the Select Board the authority to unlock gates.

DD. Shon Racicot said that the snowmobile trail runs up there.

EE. Justin Hyjek said bicycles are ok, but e-bikes are a question

FF.  Shon Racicot said e-bikes don’t harm the trails. Class 4 roads are nice to ride bicycles on.

GG. Noah Schmidt said if we can’t enforce and can’t gate, nothing will change.

HH. Justin Hyjek rescinded his motion.

1L Noah Schmidt rescinded his seconded.

JJ.  George Tucker, Jr. asked if we know the main offenders

KK. Brendan McNamara said we will institute a plan of action with the game warden.

LL. George Tucker, Jr. said we can discuss the plan at the next meeting and find out if it works.

TRAIL ASSOCIATION — PRESENT AND DISCUSS TRAIL PHASES, COSTS & BENEFITS

A, Tim Calabrese said that the group is requesting funds to complete Phase 3 of the Back 40 and the
Fletcher Farms trail. A total of 4.65 miles, at a total cost of $193,395.27. This amount will cover
design and construction, not maintenance. We already have many and are actively enlisting more
volunteers to build the trails and kiosks. The trails are safe and environmentally sound. We are
expecting the ACT250 permit for the Fletcher Farm potion within a few weeks. He referred to their
packet for show the breakdown of how the previous donation of $25,000 from Ludlow had been
spent. He said they also had funding from private donations and also $1,000 from the Town of
Cavendish. He said that a professional trail building company, Sinuosity, is doing the design,
construction and installing drainage. They hope to do Ph.1 of the Fletcher Farm portion next summer
and Phase 2 in 2026.

Scott Baitz asked what Plymouth and Cavendish have pitched in?

Tim Calabrese said Cavendish contributed $1,000. He said the long- term plan is to connect to other
towns.

Scott Baitz asked what the group has requested from other towns.

Tim Calabrese said the group has not asked.

Scott Baitz said that FEMA still owes Ludlow $2.5 million reimbursement. He said that he loves the
project, but their request is a lot of money and he suggested they ask Plymouth and Cavendish for
funds.

mmg oW



Board of Selectmen August 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 9

TEQ

o

©=z

roly

©

£<co

Noah Schmidt asked how much of the trail will be in Cavendish.

Tim Calabrese said /3 to % of the trail is in Cavendish, none in Plymouth,

Justin Hyjek said it is a great idea, but the request is steep. He said the trail is good for recreation and
they are proud of it. We just built the skate park. He said he would like to see more fund raising.
Scott Baitz asked what the balance in the ARPA account is.

Brendan McNamara said about $140,000.

Noah Schmidt said it is a great idea and this group is doing something important. We have given
$25,000 and this project will not require town maintenance. He asked about more fund raising and
possible grants. He asked what amount would be realistic to keep the project going.

Tim Calabrese said the immediate amount, to finish the BACK 40 is about $46,000 and the Fletcher
Farm portion is $147,000.

Justin Hyjek said he would support $46,000.

Scott Baitz said he does not think this should be put ahead of the spillways and the work needed there
is more than just gravel and dirt. This is a big deal to allow money to go to a bike path before
protecting homes.

Brendan McNamara said that they are supposed to be starting work on the spillways within a month.
Shon Racicot this is a perfect place, a new activity and an economic driver. We are secing more
volunteers and private donations. He said the more we grow, we need more of a catalyst. This is a
great place to use the ARPA funds.

Jim O’Malley said that Ludlow owns the dams 100%. We can tell the Feds no to the $750,000.
Brendan McNamara said this is a separate project. They will be inspecting the dams again this week.
He said that the Federal people have not said these dams are an eminent crisis. If we fix the dams, [
have to answer as to why we turned down $750,000.

Scott Baitz asked if the town fixes the dams, are we lLiable.

Brendan McNamara said yes.

Noah Schmidt asked about other pending requests.

Brendan McNamara said there are 3 on Item 9 of the agenda.

12. REVIEW AND POSSIBLY AWARD EAST HILL PAVING BID

A.

Brendan McNamara said that the bid opening was on July 31, 2024 and there were 4 bids. He said
that we requested the bidder provide quotes in cubic yards, both delivered and loaded. The
recommendation is to award the bid to Wilk Paving at the price of $85.75. He said there was some
discussing language about 100% virgin materials. We did not include that language. State Statute
allows up to 15% of recycled materials. Fuller quoted 100% virgin. He said that Ron Tarbell and he
are comfortable with using Wilk. In the future, we can add the 100% virgin materials to the RFPs.

VENDOR BID

Fuller Sand & Gravel | $86.00/Ton, $2.25/yd
Pike Industries $89.99/Ton, $2.00/vd
Bazin Brothers Trucking, Inc. $93.60/Ton, $2.00/vd
Wilk Paving $85.75/Ton, $2.15/yd

MOTION by Scott Baitz and seconded by Justin Hvjek to accept the bid from Wilk for East Hill
paving, at the price of $85.75 per ton. Motion passed unanimously.

13. MUNICIPAL MANAGER UPDATES



Board of Selectmen August 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 9

A.  Timber Inn
i. Brendan McNamara said that Timber Inn is down and cleared. Crown Point did a great job.

B. Sam’s
i. Brendan McNamara said that FEMA will be coming this Thursday to inspect. They are
expecting BATS.

C. CODE RED Alert System
i. Brendan McNamara said the CODE RED Alert system is up and running. People may register
for alerts. There is a video on Okemo Valley TV on how to register.

14. OTHER BUSINESS

A, ARPA
i. Scott Baitz asked the balance in the ARPA fund account after tonight
ii. Brendan McNamara said $35,700.
iii. Scott Baitz asked how soon the LAST Team needs to know about a donation
iv. Tim Robinson said the sooner the better. As soon as we know, we can let Sinuosity know
v. Scott Baitz suggested putting on the agenda for next month to Release $35,700 for the Trail
association.

B. Transfer Station Bathroom
i. Noah Schmidt asked about progress on the Transfer Station bathroom
ii. Brendan McNamara said they are moving forward.
iii. Logan Nicoll said that the information on the websites regarding culverts is out of date (done in
2014.) He said that he 1s willing to support this effort.

C. FEMA Payouts
i. Justin Hyjek asked if there are any payout timelines for FEMA to reimburse the town

ii. Brendan McNamara said he thinks not.

D. RESILIENCE INITIATIVE FOR VERMONT EMPOWERMENT AND RECOVERY
(RIVER)

i. George Tucker, Jr. said that he met with Chris Yurek and Brendan McNamara. They are
compiling a list of projects for flood resilience. He said that the Black River is a high target
area. He said that the Timber Inn/Little League area is about the same as a project done in
another town. There is the possibility of another project at the north end of Town. This would
be 100% free to the town. We can’t dredge the river.

15. POSSIBLE AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING (SEPTEMBER 2, 2024)

A.  Brett Sanderson said the next meeting would be September 2, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. and on the agenda:
i. Rules of Procedure
ii. Release of ARPA funds for LAST Trail project
iii. Tree Warden projects.



Board of Selectmen August 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 9

16. SIGN WARRANT ORDERS

A.  Brett Sanderson said that warrant orders have been signed.

17. POSSIBLE EXECUTIVE SESSION/PERSONNEL/CONTRACTS/LEGAL ISSUES

A.  Brendan McNamara said that an Executive Session is needed for personnel and to include Chief
Whalen.

MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Justin Hyjek to enter into Executive Session
to discuss Personnel and to include Chief Whalen. Motion passed unanimously.

Board entered into Executive Session at 7:43 p.m.

No action taken.

MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to exit Executive. Motion
passed unanimously.

Board exited Executive Session at 8:55 p.m.

w

mo O

e

18. ADJOURN

A. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Noah Schmidt to adjourn. Motion passed
unanimously.
B. Meeting adjourned at 8:56 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisha Klaiber

Brett Sanderson, Chairman Noah Schmidt

Scott Baitz - George Tucker, Jr. o

Justin Hyjek



8.

9.

Town of Ludlow
Department Head Reports

August 2024

. Ambulance — Stephanie Grover

Building & Grounds — Kevin MacPherson
Fire Department — Chief Ben Whalen

Highway — Ron Tarbell

. Listers — Jeannie Stasz

Parks & Recreation — Nick Miele
Planning/Zoning — Rosemary Goings
Police — Chief Jeffrey Billings

Town Clerk/Treasurer — Ulla Cook

10.Transfer Station — Pattie Potter



J/\ LUDLOW AMBULANCE SERVICE, PO. BOX 359, LUDLOW, VERMONT 0514-0359

(802) 228-2880 FAX (802) 228-5505

Ludlow Ambulance Service
August 1, 2024- August 28, 2024

Total Calls
August 2024: 62 Calls August 2023- 55 Calls
Ambulance Calls August 2024
+ Ludlow 31
¢ (avendish 5
< Proctorsville 11
*  Plymouth 4
¢ Mount Holly 9
»  Chester 1
»  Shrewsbury
*  Andover
» Reading
+  Weston 1

» Londonderry
» Springfield Hospital/ Springfield
» Rutland Hospital
»  Mount Ascutney Hospital
¢ Mutual Aid received
Transport
‘Springfieid Hospitai 30
Dartmouth
Landing Zone
Mount Ascutney
Rutland Hospital 12
No Transports/Stand by Coverage 20
Gill Home
Cheshire Medical Center
Home
Valley Regional Hospital



Ludlow
vT

”4/\ LUDLOWAMBULANCE SERVICE, P.0. BOX 359, LUDLOW, VERMONT 0514-0359

(802) 228-2880 FAX (802) 228-5505

LAS Updates:
e We have one of our EMT’s Dylan Chambers just begin an AEMT class that is set to complete in December,
this will give us one more ALS provider going into the winter season.

e We have been optimizing the nice weather and doing in person trainings throughout summer, this month’s
training focused on trauma, splinting, and bleeding control.

o Continued work on the regional technical rescue team with a swift water awareness class, as well as in
water training taking place mid-September.

e Qur Chief Stephanie Grover is officially out on maternity leave with her new addition making her entrance
-on this past Monday! Mom and-baby- are doing great!

Mary T. Mancino
Acting EMS Chief/Training Captain
Ludlow Ambulance Service



LUDLOW BUILDING & GROUNDS
Monthly Report

AUGUST 2024

The following was performed the following work during the Month of August :

General Building & Vehicle Maintenance:

General maintenance and cleaning of the Town Hall, Dorsey Park, Public Safety
Building, Community Center

Mowing and trimming ongoing

Daily Cemetery checks and coordination of staff

Over saw air conditioning repairs at Sr. center

Pressure washing ongoing

Setting up for events at different facilities

Touch up painting ongoing

Performed general maintenance and cleaning of pickup truck, mowers,
Checks and misc.at the High school

Working on estimates for tree removal and floor waxing

Drainage issue at Dorsey being done soon

Working on generator inspection and repair

Removed tree at fire station

And many more things

Kevin MacPherson
Building & Grounds Foreman



Ludlow Fire Department

P.O. Box 355, Ludlow, Vermont 05149
E-mail: ludlowfire@comcast.net

To: Selectboard

From: Ben Whalen, Fire Chief
Date: August 28", 2024

Subject: Monthly Report - August

Since the Juty report Ludlow Fire Department responded to 13 calls for service. The type of
incidents is broken down below:

Number of
Incident Type Incidents
Fire Alarm 9
Medical Assist
Body Removal 1
Total: 13

Although new in the position it was great to get away for a previously planned family
vacation. That said its good to be back in the seat and at the fire house. It has been a pleasure
getting to know the men and woman of the department. | have been very pleased with the amount
of personnel responding to calls for service, especially during the busy summer months.

Throughout July we have continued to make progress on vehicle maintenance andlam
hopeful by the middle of next week all of our fleet will be back in service for the first time since
coming into the position. The new Chief car has arrived and outfitting will occur in the coming
months. | begin meeting with vendors this week to start preliminary specs for future apparatus and
will provide more information to the board as it becomes available.

In early August | became a member of the Carrier Fire Chiefs of Vermont, being part of this
group is good for the department and will give us a greater voice and also provide information on fire
service at the state and federal level. We are continuing to work closely with all the other town
departments and building those relationships. September will be another busy month with some
new operational changes and promotions as well as several joint trainings with the ambulance
service and neighboring departments.

Only__‘ggodjhings to come

o b

Ben Whalen, Fire Chief
Ludlow Vermont Fire Department
802-952-3942



\  LUDLOW

To: Selectboard
From: Ben Whalen, Fire Chief

Ludlow Fire Department

Date: August 28th, 2024

Subject: False Fire Alarm Report

PO. Box 355, Ludlow, Vermont 05149

E-mail: ludiowfire@comcast.net

Since the July report Ludlow Fire Department responded to nine fire alarms of which eight were

false.

False Alarms:

Date
8/3/2023
8/5/2024
8/17/2024
8/17/2024
8/19/2024
8/23/2024
8/23/2024
8/26/2024
8/26/2024

Type

Fire Alarm
False Alarm
False Alarm
False Alarm
False Alarm
False Alarm
False Alarm
False Alarm
False Alarm

Ben Whalen, Fire Chief

Ludlow Vermont Fire Department
802-952-3942

Location

2 Dublin RD, Ptymouth

47 Deport ST, Ludlow

16 Bridge ST, Ludlow

92 Hemlock Hill, Ludiow

360 Trailside RD, Ludlow

8 Pond ST, Ludlow

111 Jackson Gore RD, Ludlow
109 Okemo Ridge RD, Ludlow
77 Evergreen Acres, Ludlow

Notes

Cancelled - In Plymouth
False - No hazards
False - Cooking

False - Fog Machine
False - Plumbers

False - No hazards
False - No hazards
False - No hazards
False - Cooking




LUDLOW HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

Monthly Report - August
2024

e Transfer Station

o

O

Crushed & Load Dumpsters
= Demo
= cardboard

Turning compost

¢ Equipment Maintenance

o]
o]
o]

Police Cruiser Maintenance
Ambulance Maintenance
Maintenance on highway trucks/ equipment

e Trees & Brush

o

Ongoing Clean-up from Storm Damage

e Other/Miscellaneous

O

O 00000000000 O0O0

FEMA documentation

Cold patching on going

Hauling Winter sand

Grading Roads

Chloride Gravel Rds.

Apply Gravel/Surpac on Gravel Rds.

Work on cleaning up Pit (Flood debris

Roadside Mowing/Mowing Flood control dams
Add Gravel East Lake Rd.- Fema

Assist with Water service 28&29 Pleasant St.
Ditching Nelson Rd.

Assist with Sewer Manhole/Line replacement W. Main St.
Prep for possible Flooding (Hurricane Debby)
Replace 2’ Cross Culvert with 3’ (Town Farm Rd.)
Digging out Soap Stone Brook

Respectively submitted,

Ronald Tarbell

Highway Foreman



TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF LISTERS AND ASSESSOR
P.0.BOX 359
LUDLOW, VT. 05149
PHONE 802-228-7206
listers@ludlow.vt.us

LISTERS AND ASSESSOR’S OFFICE

AUGUST 2024 MONTHLY REPORT

Property transfers from April 1, 2024 to present have been imputed both in
Nemrc and Patriot.

Reviewing and validating the sales in VTPIE portal is completed.

SymQuest delivered a new printer to our office, as our lease was up on our old
one.

We will begin to go out and view properties that have had improvements
made or renovations, that are not reflected on the current property cards.

Respectfully
L

Ludlow Liste Assessor|s Office




Jeffrey P. Billings

Chief of Police
P.O.Box B

Ludlow, VT 05149-0250

t—‘

TO: Board of Selectmen
From: Chief Billings

ACTIVITY LOG

AUGUST 2024

INVESTIGATIONS:
Dead Body

Drug Overdose
Untimely

Sexual Assault
Fatal Accidents
Fights

Child Abuse
Burglaries
Larcenies
vandalism
Domestics
Accidents

Animal Complaints
Disorderly Conduct
Harassment
Drunkenness
Possession Stolen Property
Attempted Larceny
Juvenile Complaints
Trespassing
I1legal Dumping
Found Missing Person
Threats

Stolen Vehicle
ARRESTS/CITATIONS:
DWI

voyeurism

Domestic Abuse
Unlawful Mischief
Disorderly Conduct
Simple Assault

Simple Assault Police Officer
Violation Release Conditions

Arrest on warrant
Larceny
DLS

HOROOOQOOOK COCOOOOOOOCONNWOHMHOOCOHROO

Any Season Is The Right Season to Visit Ludlew

Proud Sponsor Of The Dare Program

udlow, Vermont
A Better Place To Live, Work & Play

Municipal Off
Ph..802-228.4.
Fax 802-228.5
police@Iludlow



MOTOR VEHICLE STOPS:
TICKETS ISSUED FOR:

Stop Sign

Speeding

No Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

NOo Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
village Ordnance
Parkin? Violations
Alcoho

Cell phone
Marijuana

VERBAL WARNINGS FOR:

Stop Sign

Speeding

NOo Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

No Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
DWI

Parking violations
Cell Phone

OROCOONONOMMRERIO

w

OI—‘O:OOOOWOHI—‘



MISC. COMPLAINTS:

Noise

Suspicious Circumstance
False Alarms

Assist VSP

Assist Courts

Assist DMV

Assist Ludlow Agency
Assist Other Agency
Business/House Checks
Motorist Assist

MV Disturbances

Civil Matters

General Services
Trash violation

ORNOWOIRE
o ~

N

ONNWN
-9

The Ludlow Police Department provided 3110 miles of routine patrol.

Foot patrol accounted for 3 hours.

Respectfully submitted;

7 J
A ffrey P. Billings
Chief of Police



To:  Select Board Members
From: Ulla P. Cook, Clerk/Treasurer
Subject:  August
Date:  August 27, 2024

The following is a breakdown of the activity in the Town Clerk and Treasurers
office for the month of August:

Bank Statements for both Town and Village.

Recording in book 472. We now have 399 books or 239,400 pages scanned and
linked. This means we now have over 40 years in the computer. We are
encouraging the title searchers to use the computer versus the card file. We also
now have all the land record books available on line from the home page.
Property transfer tax returns are scanned from 1968 to present. Pam is now
working on putting the Lien Books and scanning into the NEMRC System.

Entered the budget figures into the income and expense reports.

The primary election was held on August 13. We had a very low turnout of only
206 voters out of a total of 1,694.

Collected first quarter property taxes in the amount of $7,754,482 and $1,599.938
and the other three quarters. Sent letters to 258 taxpayers who forgot to pay.

Received 96 documents for recording during August which includes warranty
deeds, quit claim deeds, mortgages, mortgage discharges, bianchi, certificate of
occupancy, liens and miscellaneous permits. Also included in the documents for
recording are 23 property transfers totaling $9,465,159.

/-UVUL‘
(



08/27/24
12:01 pm

Account

GENERAL
ADMINISTRATION
BUILDING AND GROUNDS
CEMETERY

TOWN CLERK

TOWN TREASURER
INTEREST/DIVIDEND
AMBULANCE

FIRE

COMMUNITY CENTER
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT
High School Building
HIGHWAY

INSURANCE

LISTERS

PLANNING

POLICE
RECREATION

FLOOD

SOLID WASTE
CAPITAL

Total Revenues

ADMINISTRATION
BUILDING AND GROUNDS
TOWN CLERK/TREASURER
COMMUNITY CENTER OP
PLANNING SERVICES
LISTERS

POLICE DEPARTMENT
AMBULANCE

FIRE DEPARTMENT

MUN. TRANSIT SYS
HIGH SCHOOL BUILDING
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
SOLID WASTE
DISPOSAL

CEMETERY DEPARTMENT
RECREATION DEPARTMENT
FLOOD

INTER GOVERNMENTAL
APPROPRIATIONS
INSURANCE

VOTED ARTICLES
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS
DEBT MANAGEMENT
CAPITAL

Total Expenditures

Town of Ludlow General Ledger
Current Yr Pd: 2 - Budget Status Report
General Fund

Page 1 of 2
UCook

Actual

Budget Actual % of Budget
4,998,514.59 31,930,069.06 638.79%
241,593.00 120,880.56 50.03%
13,300.00 2,495.00 18.76%
39,250.00 1,762.50 4.49%
78,250.00 11,702.95 14.96%
147,500.00 4,146.37 2.81%
44,500.00 9,813.97 22.05%
815,600.00 72,613.51 8.90%
2,500.00 300.00 12.00%
2,300.00 160.00 6.96%
0.00 0.00 0.00%
6,500.00 0.00 0.00%
151,750.00 91,781.14 60.48%
6,500.00 0.00 0.00%
3,500.00 0.00 0.00%
59,500.00 18,144.50 30.49%
60,480.00 310.00 0.51%
22,800.00 10,204.73 44.76%
0.00 0.00 0.00%
187,750.00 37,611.73 20.03%
275,000.00 78,996.70 28.73%
7,157,087.59 32,390,992.72 452.57%
314,870.00 72,864.28 23.14%
236,600.00 97,755.60 41.32%
262,700.00 43,347.39 16.50%
94,740.00 18,309.33 19.33%
209,425.00 27,662.61 13.21%
82,635.00 12,145.13 14.70%
1,337,320.00 193,523.32 14.47%
824,400.00 164,955.33 20.01%
293,350.00 38,955.24 13.28%
0.00 0.00 0.00%
97,425.00 2,943.66 3.02%
1,164,900.00 112,017.31 9.62%
279,850.00 78,103.39 27.91%
163,950.00 28,386.67 17.31%
127,700.00 34,441.83 26.97%
216,411.00 55,472.72 25.63%
0.00 32,717.20 100.00%
144,000.00 44,774.56 31.09%
173,587.00 59,256.13 34.14%
196,000.00 74,791.64 38.16%
229,750.00 0.00 0.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00%
380,529.00 30,034.64 7.89%
243,000.00 96,109.60 39.55%
7,073,142,00 1,318,567.58 18.64%



08/27/24
12:01 pm

Account

Total General Fund

Total All Funds

Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 2 of 2
Current Yr Pd: 2 - Budget Status Report UCook
General Fund

Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget



LUDLOW TRANSFER STATION
JULY 2024 REPORT

The following containers were hauled out this month:

# Containers Container Size Content

4 40-yard MSW
_ 4 40-yard C&D
1 0 30-yard Glass
[ 1 30-yard Metal -
' 2 40-yard Z Sort Recyclables

0 30-yard Cardboard Bales

2500 1bs. 1bs. Compost
0 30-yard Tires

Covered Pallets = 0; Covered Gaylords = 0; Non-
Covered Pallet = 0; Non-Covered Gaylords =0
Broken Covered Gaylord = 0/Non-Covered Gaylord

0 Boxes Lightbulbs
0 units Freon
0 units/0 Extinguishers Propane Tanks/Fire Extinguishers
0 Buckets Ballasts
| 8 Boxes Batteries (Alkaline & Haz)
15 Gallons Mixed Oil Cooking Oil &Waste Oil

We would like to thank the Highway Dept., for their continued support of crushing & packing our containers,
preparing them for removal, along with grading our driveway.

We assisted the Chamber of Commerce with providing trash cans for their ‘Best of Vermont Summer Festival’.
Permit sales are continuing to be sold on a continuous base.
In addition to our racoons enjoying our MSW bin, we now have a Bear with 3 cubs who love to eat the compost

material. With ALL the wildlife that frequent our facility, I am happy to report that they are very ‘skidish’ of
humans and back away with any loud noises.

Until next month,

Pattie Potter
Transfer Station Manager



Catalis Tax & CAMA, Inc.

C AT A L I S A 27 Congress Street, Suite 1105 Salem, MA 01970

www.Catalisgov.com

AP5 - UPGRADE (Hosted)

Ludiow, VT Date: 8/7/2024
37 Depot Street, PO Box 359
Ludlow, VT 05149 Contact: Jeff Leone
Phone: (781) 476-2035
Brendan McNamara
Ph: (802) 228-2841 E-Mail: jeff.leone@catalisaov.com
tmanager@tds.net
SOFTWARE / SERVICES EXPIRATION DATE DATE
AssessPro AP5 Upgrade (Hosted) RE/WEB .
Approx. 3,567 Parcels 90 DAYS Date: 8/7/2024
Item Description Initial Cost Annual
AssessPro AP5 AP5 Upgrade, Real Estate $0.00 $6,100.00
Conversion Up to 10 Years / (10) Databases $3,500.00 N/A
Conversion (0) Additional Database(s) $500.00 each $0.00 N/A
WebPro AP5 WebPro AP5 - Hosted Online Property Search Included Included
AWS Hosting AWS AP5 Cloud Hosting (1) Full Remote User $0.00 $3,389.00
o AssesaRre-APS TTANTIG —~54=506-00- N/A
Set-Up Installation and Set-up Inctuded N/A
SUBTOTAL $5,000.00 | $9,489.00
TOTAL $5,000.00 | $9,489.00

Workstation (Recommended) Requirements: Windows 10 (or Greater) 64-bit, Intel i5 Core 3.0 GHz or better, 256 GB SSD, 8 GB RAM
Minimum, 1024 x 768 monitor resolution (96dpi), 512 MB RAM video card to run GIS Viewer

APS Cloud Option — Annual (Price Includes 1 Remote Access User. Additional Remote Access Users will be $1,000.00 each — Discounts
are available for Read-Only users, if all users are licensed for Remote Access} The AP5 Cloud Option moves the database out of the
on-premises environment and into our hosted solution powered by Amazon Web Services (AWS) co-located in two data centers in
Virginia. The software can run locally with your existing site-license orlfully remote with Remote Access Licenses.

Site-license requirement: To ensure valid user authentication, Cloud Hosting REQUIRES the computer running AssessPro 5.0 to be
joined to a valid centrally managed domain. Currently Microsoft Entra AD Services are not supported. If the jurisdiction does not have
a Domain Controller, all AP5 users will need to be Remote Access Users and are not covered by the Site-License. The software also
requires a location that can share a foldér used to host the software installation files. This server requires minimal resour ces as it is
only used for installs and updates and is typically placed on your existing file server. With this option, the location is whitelisted and
as such access is only provided from the office and not remote locations.




CONTRACT FOR SERVICES FOR 2026 STATISTICAL REAPPRAISAL
TOWN OF LUDLOW, VERMONT

AND
NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS, LTD

This contract is made and entered into this ___ day of , 2023, by and
between the Town of Ludlow, Vermont (hereinafter referred to as the TOWN), a Municipal
Corporation existing under the laws of the State of Vermont, acting by and through its
Selectboard, and New England Municipal Consultants, Ltd, a Vermont corporation
(hereinafter referred to as the COMPANY), whose principal place of business is at 37 Old
Place Road, Lyndonville, Vermont. This contract shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Vermont.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties
agree as follows:

1. IDENTIFICATION

1.1 Name of TOWN LUDLOW, VERMONT
1.2Address of TOWN PO BOX 359
LUDLOW, VT 05149
1.3 Contracting Officer for the TOWN TOWN MANAGER
1.4Name of COMPANY NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL

CONSULTANTS, LTD

1.5Mailing Address of COMPANY P.O. BOX 372
LYNDON CENTER, VT 05852

1.6 Contracting Officer for the COMPANY  WILLIAM J. KRAJESKI, PRESIDENT

2. GENERAL SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY THE COMPANY

2.1 Complete a 2026 Statistical Reappraisal as defined State of Vermont through
its Property Valuation and Review branch.

2.2 Determine the “appraisal value” (32 V.S.A. 3481) of all property as identified in
the TOWN RFP in compliance with the statutes of the State of Vermont.

2.2.1 Appraise all taxable property within the taxing jurisdiction in a good
and workman like manner according to State of Vermont statutes.

2.2.2 Appraise all tax exempt and non-taxable property within the taxing
jurisdiction in the same manner as taxable property. (see section 2.8.



2.3 Completion of work

2.3.1 With the exception of Grievance and BCA hearings, the COMPANY
shall complete all work and deliver the same in final form to the
Listers on or before June 1, 2026.

2.3.2 The COMPANY recognizes the importance of the dates set in
Section 2.3.1. The COMPANY agrees to pay a penalty of $100 per
day for each day of delay beyond that date until delivery, provided
the delay is caused by the COMPANY.

2.3.3 The reappraisal shall be considered complete and in its final form
only when all Board of Civil Authority reviews have been completed,
value changes made as required, and the figures are submitted to
and accepted by the TOWN.

2.4Personnel

The COMPANY shall employ experienced and competent appraisers, who
have been approved first by the Vermont Property Valuation and Review
Division and then the TOWN in the grading, classifying and appraising of all
property covered by this contract, and all necessary field appraising of all
property covered by this contract. All necessary field assistants employed by
the COMPANY shall be competent to perform the work they are called upon to
do.

2.5Public Relations

The COMPANY and the TOWN, during the progress of the work, shall use their
best efforts and that of their employees to promote full cooperation and amiable
relations with the taxpayers. All publicity and news releases will be cleared with
and approved by the Town’s Listers and/or Selectboard. The COMPANY will
make available speakers to acquaint groups with the nature and purpose of the
reappraisal and all of the factors and conditions that eventually make up said
individual property values. Following substantial completion of the reappraisal,
informal public meetings will be scheduled at which taxpayers may meet with
the COMPANY appraisers to review their assessments. The COMPANY shall
also meet one time with the Board of Civil Authority (BCA) prior to the 2021
BCA hearings to offer training and assistance to the BCA.

2.6 Confidentiality

The COMPANY agrees not to disclose to anyone, other than the Listers, any
new value discovered, for any purpose, or to permit anyone to use or peruse
any of the data on the file in connection with the reappraisal until such time as
the values are turned over to, and accepted by, the Listers.



2.7 Compensation and Terms

The TOWN, in consideration of the services hereunder to be performed by the
COMPANY, agrees to pay to the COMPANY the sum of ONE HUNDRED AND
EIGHTY-THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($183,000).

2.7.1 Payment shall be made in monthly installments as the work
progresses based on 90% of the estimated proportion of the work
completed in the preceding month with the 10% balance being held
accumulated until final satisfactory completion of the reappraisal as
defined herein.

2.7.2 Payment shall be based on monthly progress reports submitted by
the COMPANY and accepted by the TOWN.

2.7.3 Additional payment will be required for parcel counts above 3,650.
The additional compensation shall be $80 for each parcel to be
charged at the completion of the contract.

3. DETAILED SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY THE COMPANY

3.1 Development of Unit Costs

3.11

3.1.2

The COMPANY shall make a careful study and investigation of the costs of
residential and commercial construction in the area based on material and
labor costs in the area. These costs shall include all costs to construct. The
COMPANY shall test these costs against known completed costs to test the
accuracy of the study.

The COMPANY shall use unit costs as the basis of residential costs. Tables
will be constructed to represent the various units of construction and these
tables will be calibrated to represent the current cost in the TOWN.

3.2 Manual of Appraisal

3.2.1

The COMPANY shall provide the TOWN with a full manual with all costs
and formulae needed to manually reconstruct the cost value of each parcel.
The COMPANY shall train the Listers in the use of such manual. Upon
completion of the reappraisal, the COMPANY shall provide one bound copy
and one PDF format of the report on disk of the full documentation to the
Listers.

3.3Property Record Cards

3.3.1

The COMPANY shall provide the TOWN with the ability to produce on
demand a property card for each parcel and parcel card on 8.5 X 11 inch
paper.

3.3.2 Each property record shall display the owner's name, property location,

3



3.3.3

3.34

3.3.5

mailing address and other such property data along with the necessary
information to determine land value and classification, and all values broken
down to land, building, other buildings, and totals.

The card shall display building and land descriptive information and the
pricing ladder for each parcel, including all depreciation codes and factors.
Each parcel may have multiple photographs embedded. Only the primary
photograph is displayed on the printed record card. The TOWN will be able
to reproduce any record card on demand.

All coding on the card will be readily clear as to meaning or contained in
documentation.

Each property record card shall have an activity line added reflecting the
appraiser responsible for valuation.

3.4 Sales Survey

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

3.4.5

3.4.6

The TOWN shall provide a copy of all or access to all property transfers for
the three calendar years required by the State of Vermont.

The COMPANY shall provide an analysis of all such sales using generally
accepted mass appraisal statistical goals. The analysis will include a
detailed discussion of the results and the basis used for determining land,
building and total values along with adjustment patterns. The COMPANY
shall provide notation on all sales disqualified from the process as non-
arm’s length or unrepresentative.

The sales survey and analysis shall be constructed and built by the project
supervisor.

The COMPANY shall verify each sale date, price and validity and record all
information, including inspection or information collection dates, in the
appraisal system.

The COMPANY shall determine land values through the analysis of land
only sales whenever possible. In the cases of the absence or low volume of
land sales, the COMPANY will use land residuals. Each residual used will
be fully documented.

Land values shall be determined for each appropriate land unit. Typical
units would include lot, square feet, front acres, rear acres and front feet.

3.5Informal Review

The COMPANY shall prepare and mail individual notice of the proposed value
along with instructions for accessing the new/proposed value online at a web site
prepared by NEMC. The notice will also provide for a hard copy of basic data to
be sent to the property owner upon request. Further enclosed shall be instructions

4



about the appeal process and the time periods available for informal public
hearings. The COMPANY shall provide sufficient time for the hearings. The TOWN
shall be responsible for all on-line fees, printing and mailing costs associated with
the informal review.

4., VALUATION OF REAL PROPERTY
4.1 Inspection

The COMPANY agrees to attempt inspection and verify measurement of selected
improved property. These properties include all sales falling within the study period
and other selected parcels primarily consisting of commercial property and random
parcels to provide a proper sampling as required in State guidelines. The
COMPANY shall mail notice to each property owner prior to any attempted entry.

4.2 Entrance

The COMPANY will attempt to inspect all property as defined in Section 4.1 If entry
is not gained a notice will be left at the property. The COMPANY, in cooperation
with TOWN personnel who will set the appointments, will attempt to schedule
inspections of properties receiving a notice. The COMPANY will send by mail a
final request for inspection should no response be generated from previous
attempts. The COMPANY may opt to send an informational request to the property
owner along with the final notice. The COMPANY will use its expertise, familiarity
with the community, prior record and informational request returns to estimate any
property where entry is not gained. The COMPANY shall not attempt to schedule
appointments beyond April 1, 2026.

4.3 Final Comparison

The COMPANY shall produce a final analysis comparing all sold property within
the sales period with the proposed assessed value for the purpose of ensuring that
values reflect accurately the fair market value as of April 1, 2026.

4.4 Final Review

After all data has been collected and all tables are established, the COMPANY
shall perform a final review of all property. This process shall involve an exterior
viewing of each parcel to establish an equitable balance in valuations and to
eliminate errors.

4.5 Grievance and BCA Hearings
The COMPANY will provide up to ten days of assistance to the TOWN in these

phases. Assistance shall consist of preparing the Listers for grievance/BCA
meetings and providing post hearing advice.



5. VALUATION OF PUBLIC UTILITY PROPERTY

5.1 Public utility property shall be appraised consistent with Vermont law.

6. TAX APPEALS

7.

The COMPANY agrees to provide qualified representatives to support values in the
appeal process beyond the Board of Civil Authority phase for a fee of $1,000 per day.

GENERAL SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE TOWN

As a part of the compensation set forth herein, the TOWN agrees to provide the
following services:

7.1 The TOWN shall provide sufficient work area for the COMPANY to perform the
appraisal task.

7.2The TOWN shall provide the COMPANY with a network drop in the area provided
in 7.1 for a computer to be provided by the COMPANY. The TOWN shall arrange
for the installation of the computer onto the network.

7.3The TOWN shall agree that a protected, remote logon will be maintained on the
COMPANY'’s machine.

8. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES

In performing services pursuant to this Agreement, the COMPANY is performing
solely in the capacity of an independent contractor and is not an employee or agent
of the TOWN. The COMPANY does not undertake by this Agreement, or otherwise,
to perform any obligation of the TOWN, whether regulatory or contractual, and the
TOWN shall not be bound under contract, subcontract, or other commitment made by
the COMPANY without the express written consent of the TOWN.

9. PRIME CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY

10.

The TOWN requires single-point responsibility for the entire project. Subcontractors
may be used, but the COMPANY must and does accept full responsibility for a
subcontractor's performance. The COMPANY must identify all subcontractors, and
the COMPANY must describe the type of contractual arrangement that will exist with
all subcontractors. All subcontractors must be approved by the TOWN, in writing, prior
to their performing any of the services under this Agreement. The TOWN is herein
notified that Catalis, Inc. of Salem, Massachusetts is identified as a subcontractor and
is the provider of all software and technical support and license.

ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

The COMPANY shall not assign or in any way transfer any interest in this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the TOWN, provided, however, that claims for
money due or to become due to the COMPANY from the TOWN hereunder may be

6



1.

assigned to a bank, trust Company, or other financial institution without such consent
so long as notice of any such assignment is furnished promptly to the TOWN. Any
such assignment shall be expressly made subject to all defenses, set offs, or counter
claims, which would have been available to the TOWN against the COMPANY in the
absence of such assignment.

OWNERSHIP AND CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

All information acquired by the COMPANY from the TOWN, or from others at the
expense of the TOWN, in the performance of the Agreement shall be and remain the
property of the TOWN. This includes all records, data files, computer records, work
sheets, deliverable products complete and incomplete, and all other types of
information prepared or acquired by the COMPANY in the performance of this
Agreement.

11.1  The COMPANY recognizes that in the performance of this Agreement, it may
obtain or have access to confidential information including information subject to
restrictions on its disclosure. The COMPANY agrees to comply with all laws and
any regulations, rules, and guidelines promulgated thereunder-regarding access
to, and disclosure of, such information.

11.2 The COMPANY agrees that it will use this information only as required in the
performance of the Agreement and will not, before or after the completion of this
Agreement, otherwise use said information, nor copy, nor reproduce the same in
any form, except pursuant to the sole written instructions of the TOWN. The
COMPANY further agrees to return said information to the TOWN promptly at its
request in whatever form it is maintained by the COMPANY.

11.3 The COMPANY agrees to take reasonable steps to ensure the confidentiality
and security of the information in its possession or under its control.

12. INDEMNIFICATION

The COMPANY shall indemnify and hold harmless the TOWN against any and all
liability, loss, damages, cost, or expenses relating to personal injury or property
damage which the TOWN may sustain, incur, or be required to pay, arising out of or
in connection with services performed under this Agreement, by reason of any
negligent action or inaction or willful misconduct of the COMPANY, a person employed
by the COMPANY, or any of its subcontractors, provided that:

A. The COMPANY is notified of any claim within a reasonable time after the
TOWN becomes aware of it, and

B. The COMPANY is afforded an opportunity to participate in the defense of such
claim. In such an event, the COMPANY shall have the right to approve any
settlement negotiated.



13. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The COMPANY will maintain all insurance required by law for its employees, including
disability, workmen's compensation and unemployment, and public liability insurance
at least as hereinafter set forth so as to protect it and the TOWN from any and all
claims for personal injury and property damage for the entire pendency of the project:

A. A comprehensive general liability insurance policy with the following limits of

coverage: Bodily injury and property damage, $1,000,000 (One Million) each
occurrence, $1,000,000 (One Million) each individual claim per occurrence,
$1,000,000 (One Million) aggregate of all claims per occurrence.

A comprehensive automobile insurance policy with the following limits: Bodily
injury $1,000,000 (One Million) each person and $1,000,000 (One Million) for
each occurrence; property damage $500,000 (One-Half Million) each
occurrence, aggregate $1,000,000 (One Million) for each occurrence.

An insurer licensed and authorized to do business in Vermont must issue all of
the insurance. The foregoing comprehensive liability insurance policy and
comprehensive automobile liability insurance policy shall include the TOWN as
an additional named insured, at no extra cost to the TOWN, and the certificate
of the insurance relating thereto shall be submitted to the TOWN within fourteen
(14) calendar days of receipt of such written request.

14. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

14.1 Subject to the provisions of the Section 15 entitled “Force Maijeure®, if the

14.2

COMPANY shall fail to fulfill in a timely and satisfactory manner its obligations
under this Agreement, or if the COMPANY shall violate any of the covenants,
conditions, or stipulations of this Agreement, which failure or violation shall
continue for twenty-one (21) business days after written notice of said failure or
violation is received by the COMPANY, then the TOWN shall thereupon have
the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the COMPANY
of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at least seven (7)
calendar days before the effective date of such termination.

Subject to the provisions of the Section 15 entitled “Force Majeure”, if the
TOWN shall fail to fulfill in a timely and satisfactory manner its obligations under
this Agreement, or if the TOWN shall violate any of the covenants, conditions,
or stipulations of this Agreement, which failure or violation shall continue for
twenty-one (21) business days after written notice of said failure or violation is
received by the TOWN, then the COMPANY shall thereupon have the right to
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the TOWN of such
termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at least seven (7) calendar
days before the effective date of such termination.

14.3 In the event of termination, all finished deliverables and all deliverables in

process and  all other records, data files, computer records, work sheets,
studies, documentation and materials, complete and incomplete, shall be
8



delivered to the TOWN within fifteen (15) calendar days after such
termination. The COMPANY acknowledges that any failure or unreasonable
delay on its part in the delivery of such materials to the TOWN will cause
irreparable injury to the TOWN not adequately compensable in damages.
The COMPANY accordingly agrees that the TOWN may, in such event, seek
and obtain injunctive relief as well as monetary damages. The COMPANY
shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work
performed under this Agreement completed prior to the date of termination,
which is determined by the TOWN to be satisfactory.

14.4 Notwithstanding the above, in the event of termination, the COMPANY shall
not be relieved of liability by virtue of any breach of this Agreement by the
COMPANY, and the TOWN may withhold any payments to the COMPANY
for the purpose of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due
to the TOWN from the COMPANY is determined.

15. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither party will be liable to the other or be deemed to be in breach under this
Agreement for any failure to perform or delay in rendering performance due to causes
beyond its reasonable control and without its fault and negligence. Such causes may
include, but are not limited to, an order, injunction, judgment, or determination of any
Court of the United States or other such competent jurisdiction, an Act of God, war,
civil disobedience, extraordinary weather conditions, labor disputes, or shortages or
fluctuation in electric power, heat, light, or air conditioning. Dates or time of
performance will be extended automatically to the extent of such delays provided that
the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of the existence
and nature of such delay. It is agreed, however, that since the performance dates of
this Agreement are important to the implementation of the entire program, continued
failure to perform for periods aggregating sixty (60) or more days, even for causes
beyond the control of the COMPANY, shall be deemed to render performance
impossible, and the TOWN shall thereafter have the right to terminate this Agreement,
in accordance with the provisions of the section entitled "Termination" without
termination costs, penalties, or other liability.

16. EFFECTIVENESS OF AGREEMENT

The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date upon which the Agreement has
been signed and executed by the COMPANY and the TOWN.

17. NOTICES
Any notice required or permitted to be given to a party shall be sufficient if given in

writing and sent by Certified Mail, addressed to the TOWN as identified above and to
the COMPANY as identified above.



18. INTEGRATION

All attachments referred to in this Agreement are deemed to be part of the Agreement.

19. AMENDMENT

No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing, signed by
authorized representatives of both parties and attached hereto.

20. WAIVERS

No covenant, condition, duty, obligation, or undertaking contained in or made a part
of this Agreement shall be waived except by the written agreement of the parties.
Forbearance or indulgence in any form or manner by a party shall not be construed
as a waiver, nor in any way limit the legal or equitable remedies available to that party.

21. SEVERABILITY
If any provision of this Agreement is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or

void, then both parties shall be relieved of all obligations under that provision. The
remainder of the Agreement shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

10



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS, LTD and the
TOWN OF LUDLOW, VERMONT have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized officers.

TOWN OF LUDLOW,
BY ITS TOWN MANAGER

Date:

NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS, LTD
BY ITS PRESIDENT

Date:

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 62C, Section 49A, | certify under the
penalties of perjury that NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS, LTD to the best
of my knowledge and belief, has filed all Massachusetts State tax returns and paid all
Massachusetts State taxes required under law.

NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS, LTD 59-3762873
Company Name Fed. I.D. Number

By:
Company Officer - William J. Krajeski, President

Date:

11



m‘:ﬁlé

e

[

Proposal for ARPA Funds - Town of Ludlow

Establishing a Community Arts Program in Ludlow, Vermont
Applicant: Society of Vermont Artists and Craftsmen

Project Summary

The Society of Vermont Artists and Craftsmen (SOVAC) seeks ARPA funding to
purchase capital equipment necessary to establish year-round community-based arts
programs accessible to our Ludlow and Okemo Valley residents.

This project aims to purchase essential capital equipment to provide artistic
opportunities, skills training, and cultural enrichment for residents in Ludlow and the

Okemo Valley area.

We believe that our vision for the future aligns with Ludlow's broader community
development goals. This equipment will allow us to help residents access and
experience art. By creating space for Ludlow residents to make art we will also be
developing our community. Artful lives help people live more fulfilling lives, which
makes our community stronger, both culturally and economically.

Need Statement

Ludlow, like many rural Vermont communities, lacks accessible art education programs.
This gap limits opportunities for creative expression, skill development, and community
building through the arts. The COVID-19 pandemic has further highlighted the need for
engaging, hands-on activities that promote mental well-being and social connections.

As a community arts center, we are dedicated to our own community and we are shifting
our approach to better serve the broader needs of our community’s residents, working
artists, and the local economy. We know that our community needs more opportunities
to:

Build and be in community with each other

Explore and pursue creative passions and interests

Deepen their professional skills to further their livelihood

Access equipment that is too expensive or otherwise out of reach for many art
students and professionals



Previously, we relied heavily on seasonal instructors to bring the equipment and tools
needed to run arts workshops. By purchasing our own equipment, we can offer more
consistent and year-round programming to our local community. This will empower us to
create a more inclusive environment that allows anyone at any economic or sKkill level to
participate in arts programming, from nurturing a student's budding interest to
craftspeople further developing their expertise.

We are able to expand our teaching artist pool as we will no longer need teaching artists
to provide, transport, set up, and take down their own personal equipment for each
class or workshop. This expectation limited who was willing to teach at our school and,
therefore, what and how many classes we were able to offer.

We will also be able to expand our support of local artists and craftspeople in
developing their expertise and sustaining their livelihood through advanced
workshops/classes and access to hard-to-obtain equipment, tools, and storage.

What the New Vision for Fletcher Farm School Has to Offer

We recognize that Ludlow has an existing community center, and SOVAC does not
intend to replace it. Instead, we want to continue our work enhancing the community by
utilizing the historic Fletcher Farm Campus as a gathering space for everyone. The
campus has excellent potential for a great community space for several reasons. A
studio and workshop-based art offering could be a great beginning.

By tying the project to existing community development objectives, it becomes an
integral part of Ludlow's vision for its future rather than an isolated initiative. By investing
in capital equipment for this programming, Ludlow is not just creating artistic equipment
and studio workspaces; it's investing in its people, its culture, and its future.

A community arts center project has the potential to become a cornerstone of
community life, offering wide-ranging benefits that touch on the town's economic, social,
educational, and cultural aspects. It represents a forward-thinking approach to
community development that recognizes the power of arts to transform and enrich rural
life.

Rural communities deserve to have a vibrant arts community . However, it can’t be left
to the artists alone to create a vibrant arts community. SMU DataArts uses census data
and surveys to identify the attributes of a vibrant arts community and identify steps a
rural community can take to build and support arts in their community. They have found
that,




“a rural community may not necessarily receive the art it deserves, but it certainly
gets the art it is collectively willing to work for. The majority of any given rural
community must demonstrate a willingness to work towards arts vibrancy. Beyond
artists and arts administrators, the community at large must actively engage and
participate. This commitment is reflected in philanthropic contributions to the arts,
volunteerism, engagement through participation as arts observers and arts
participants, in-kind donations and services, prominent community figures joining
arts boards, and constituents advocating for arts funding from local governments.
Geoffrey Kershner, CEQ at the Academy Center

of the Arts and founder of Small Town Big Arts

n1

The bottom line is that it takes a village to build a vibrant arts community. Many of our
community leaders have mentioned to us that Fletcher Farm School for the Arts &
Crafts can’t go away and that it is an important pillar of our community. Therefore, we
implore you to financially support SOVAC as we redirect our mission to realize a new
vision for our future. Bertolt Brecht referred to art as a hammer, something to actively
wield, not something to passively exist while being broadly revered.

The importance of these programs for the Ludlow community and its surrounding towns
extends far beyond simply offering an art activity. Here’s why this community arts center
project is crucial for the community:

1.

Community Building & Social Connection. A community arts center provides
a space for residents to gather, be part of a community, and build community. A
space like this is crucial in rural areas where geographic isolation can lead to
social isolation. Fostering social connections and reducing isolation has become
especially important post-pandemic. We are creating a shared space for
intergenerational interaction while building a sense of community pride and
shared accomplishment.

The town has emphasized the importance of creating spaces and activities that
bring community members together. Studio environments offer a perfect setting
for this kind of engagement. Ludlow has shown interest in using the arts as a tool
for community development. An arts center would serve as a flagship project in
this approach. A strong arts program will enhance Ludlow's identity as a ski and
outdoor recreation town with a vibrant, creative community creating year-round
appeal to a wider audience.

' Kershner, Geoffrey. Arts Vibrancy in Rural Communities is Achieved through Collective Action. Posted June 27, 2024. Retrieved

August 25, 2024,
https://culturaldata.org/learn/data-at-work/2024/arts-vibrancy-in-rural-communities-is-achieved-through-collective-action/.



2. Access to Resources. By owning our own equipment, we can support the
introduction of and learning of art disciplines. We make the entry barrier to the
arts virtually disappear. We will offer the use of art equipment and provide art
education programs that are locally unavailable and/or unaffordable/inaccessible
to art students and working artists. This is not only about educating people to be
future artists. By offering studio and workshop space, we are supporting local
working artists and expanding their businesses and livelihood.

3. Economic Diversification. Ludlow has been working to reduce its dependence
on ski tourism from Okemo Mountain Resort. Expanding our programming to
year-round diversifies winter appeal and diversifies the local economy. It creates
new job opportunities in the arts sector, complementing existing hospitality and
retail jobs.

4. Entrepreneurship Incubation. Ludlow has become a service-based economy.
SOVAC's artistic and creative programming values skilled trades and fits into
Ludlow's need for a more diverse economy. It would create jobs for local artists
and instructors and develop marketable skills for participants, which could lead to
entrepreneurial opportunities. Over the years, we have seen students who have
attended our weaving or jewelry fabrication workshops start their own successful
businesses.

Over time, this could lead to a foundation for artisans to sell their work at local
markets or online. The art-studio programs could collaborate with local
businesses, such as restaurants using locally-made pottery or woven material for
tables, supporting Ludlow's goal of a strong, interconnected local economy.

5. Cultural Preservation & Enrichment. By creating an arts hub for preserving
and celebrating local heritage, traditions, and the arts, we promote traditional
craft skills and enhance the local arts scene, contributing to Ludlow's and Okemo
Valley’s cultural identity. We would provide a platform for artistic expression and
creativity and continue the connection to Vermont's rich history of craftsmanship
and self-reliance.

Ludlow has been striving to expand its cultural offerings beyond outdoor
recreation. This arts-based community program addresses that goal by providing
a new artistic venue and accessible learning opportunities.

The adaptive reuse of buildings is important throughout Vermont and in Ludlow.
The land that encompasses the campus stood resilient during the flooding in July
and December last year. As people drive into Ludlow, they cannot help but



admire the farm structures that house the supervisory union, the community
garden, Ludiow Area Sports Trails, and now a community arts center. Our project
aligns with town efforts to find new uses for underutilized structures, particularly
with our location as the grand entrance to Ludiow and the town center.

. Youth Engagement. These centers offer safe spaces and structured activities
for young people, which is especially important in areas with limited
youth-oriented facilities or programs. SOVAC has a long history of providing
young people opportunities for art exploration throughout the summer and it will
continue to do so. Behavioral science has already proven that art encourages
creative thinking and problem-solving skills by providing hands-on learning
experiences for all ages, and applying STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering,
Mathematics) concepts to art education opens the world of math, engineering,
and science more accessible.

There is potential to expand our summer youth programming to also include after
school programming, weekends, and no-school days and cultural activities to
enhance learning during the school year. We are exploring what it would take to
offer young adults interested in the arts valuable leadership and mentorship
opportunities.

. Lifelong Learning. A community arts center provides opportunities for adults to
continue learning new skills, whether for personal enrichment or professional
development. Adult workshops offer educational opportunities and support
lifelong learning, skill development, and community building. SOVAC
programming is aimed at providing diverse educational opportunities for
residents of all ages. The focused programming offers hands-on learning
experiences that aren't available in the town and that SOVAC has only been able
to provide during a few intermittent weeks over the summer.

. Health and Wellness. Participating in creative pursuits promotes mental health
and mindfulness and leads to better health and well-being. Post-pandemic
studies have proven the therapeutic benefits of artistic expression, as it creates
mindfulness opportunities, provides stress relief, and boosts self-esteem and
confidence through skill mastery. Expanding our programs and expanding when
they are available during the year will bring more of these benefits to more
people in our community.

. Bridging Divides of Diversity & Inclusion. Community art centers bring
together diverse groups within the community, promoting understanding and
cooperation. A space is created where diverse community members can come



together and build connections and relationships through mutual artistic interests
and shared artistic expression.

10. Supporting and Engaging Vulnerable Populations. We are addressing the
ability to offer programs to vulnerable populations like, seniors, low-income
families, and other groups with specific needs. We will continue to offer youth
scholarships and plan to implement sliding-scale fees to ensure accessibility for
all income levels and population segments in our community. A community arts
center approach would provide activities for older adults, promote active aging,
and offer opportunities for seniors to share knowledge and skills. These
programs provide meaningful activities and social connections for older
residents, supporting goals for healthy aging in the community.

11. Reducing Outmigration. Community art centers help retain residents, especially
younger generations, by improving their quality of life and providing opportunities.
By offering creative outlets and potential career paths in the arts, our community
art center will help retain young people in Ludlow, addressing concerns about
youth outmigration. Community arts centers like ours teach skills that can be
applied in various contexts, promoting community resilience. Enhancing quality of
life is crucial for attracting new residents and retaining current ones. This
program adds to the richness of community life in Ludlow.

12.Environmental Awareness. Our intention is to add and teach sustainable
practices to art creation. We have a natural campus and regularly conduct
classes and workshops so that students experience and are inspired by the
natural world around them. We continue to explore how we can utilize more
natural materials and processes, such as reclaiming clay and metal recycling, art
recycling, and natural dyeing techniques. We are also exploring how we can
utilize portable solar energy to operate our equipment.

13.Tourism & Regional Appeal. A community arts center enhances Ludlow's
appeal as a destination for arts and culture. As an organization that aims to
serve local residents, community arts centers also attract visitors to the region,
become gathering spaces for hosted events, and support local businesses. This
program adds depth to the town's tourism offerings, helping to attract visitors
during off-peak seasons and supporting a more year-round economy for local
businesses. This all contributes to the town's economic vitality.

In essence, community arts centers in small rural towns like Ludlow can serve as a vital
focal point that can enhance social cohesion, provide services, and contribute to the



overall quality of life, helping Ludlow and the Okemo Valley thrive despite the
challenges of rural living.

Project Description:

We are developing programs that align closely with Ludlow's efforts to create a more
diverse, resilient, and culturally rich community. We want to support Ludlow’s economic
goals while also addressing social and cuitural needs.

This initiative will build out four studios and enable us to offer a range of workshops for
multiple skill levels. The program will:

1. Purchase and install capital equipment to support the following year-round
programming:
a. Fiber Arts

i. Weaving

ii. Quilting

iii. Sewing
Silver Jewelry Fabrication
Pottery (hand and wheel throwing clay and porcelain)
Creative Metal Work (welding and soldering)
Office Equipment and Workspace Conditioning Equipment

®aoo00o

Budget
Total Request: $32,730.50

Budget Breakdown by Discipline for Capital Equipment

Sustainability Plan

After the initial ARPA investment, the program will be sustained through:
Class and workshop fees

Annual membership dues

Grants and donations

Community partnerships (e.g., schools, senior centers)

We have a plan to maintain the newly purchased equipment on a regular schedule
through volunteer and contracted labor, ensuring that the equipment can be used for
many years to come.



Community Impact

This project will:

Provide a new avenue for artistic expression and skill development
Create jobs and economic opportunities in the arts sector

Foster community connections and reduce social isolation

Support local economic development and attract tourism

Preserve and promote traditional craft skills

Evaluation

We will measure success through:

Local participation rates and demographic data
Student surveys and testimonials

Economic impact assessment (job creation, tourism)
Community engagement metrics (exhibitions, events)

Conclusion

Creating a community aligns with ARPA's goals of supporting community resilience and
economic recovery. By investing in arts education and creative infrastructure, we can
build a stronger, more vibrant Ludlow for years to come.



SOVAC ARPA Capltalization Budget
Item Program Vendor

Description Quantity

Product
Cost

Total Cost

FIBER ARTS

Sewing Machines Quilting and Sewing World

Weidner

Serger Quiling and Sewing World
Weidner

Quilting Machine Quilting

Shalving Quilting, Sewing, Weaving  Amazon

Storage Bins Fiber Arts

Bobbin Winders Weaving Harrisville
Designs

The Woolery

Hame Depot

Bobbins Weaving

Boat Shuttles Weaving The Woolery

Pottery

Janome HD300D 7

elna 264 Overlock Serger Machine 1
Receive g $40 EnalJanome bonus accessofy package of your chaica,

Pleasa spacily el checkoul or call us for more information,

Compacl and comfortable, the EIna 264 affers essential overiock features to complete

your crealive ideas while delivering flawless resulls. You can camry out all the steps of

Your sewing projects, by cutting, sewing together, and averstitching in one operation.

Main Features

7-stitch programs

Instant railed hem device

Color-coded thread guides

LED lighting

Adjustable cutting width from 3.1 to 7.3 mm
Adjusteble stitch length from 1 to 4 mm

Adjustable differenilal feed from 0.5 fo 2,25
Maximum sewing speed adjustabls up to 1,300 spm

Basic Features

Programs 4/3 threads

Thread tension Manual

Threeding chart

Color-caded for easy thraading

Lower looper Easily accessible

Caver hemstitch

Instant rolled hem device

Upper knife aasily retractable

Foot pressure adjustment

Presser fool Snap (clip) on type
4-spool holders

Thread cuter Integrated

Lighting LED

Threed guide telescopic antenna x
Waste tray optional

Adjustable stitch length from 1 to 4 mm
Adjustabla cutting width from 3.1 to 7.3 mm
Accessories

Screwdsiver (small
Tweezers
Needle threader

idner,
D528 _5id=12c3cA7638 ss=t
Janome Quilt Maker 15" Long Arm Quiling Machine 1
Recelve a $500 Janame/Eina bonus accessory package of yaur choice.
Please spacify at checkout or call us far mora information
Quiit Maker Serfes Comparison Chart
Machine Manual

The Janoms Quit Maker 15 provides 15-inches of fres-motion fraedom in this long-arm
quilting machine. No more basting with pins or strugaling to cram a quill under a domestic
machine, Gt stitching quickly with the easy-t i features, sasy-i
conlrols and the space lo reach your full creative potential. Quill without rastrictions.

Main Features.

15-inch throal spacs

1,800 stitches per minute

4-18 stitches perinch

Choose from Cruise or Precision slitch regulalion or Manual Mada
High-spead rotary hack with large capacity M-class bobbin
includes closed-toe fool and opan-toa foat

USB part for easy software updates

Compatibifty with Pro-Stitcher Lite™

Frant-mounted LCD monitor with integrated USB port
Includes & bobbins 2nd 20 nesdles

LED fight ring around the needle bar

Stitch Overspeed elarm

Project Stitch Count

Needle up/down function

Compatible with all Quiil Maker Pro feet

Inciudes Pro Frame B with optional 2 foot extenslon kit

Basic Features

Machina Arm Length 15%

Quiiting Area 4', 8', or optional 10’ wide x 18" deep
Maximum Speed 1,800SPM
Stilch Regutalion Y

Manua) Speed Mode

4-18 stitches per inch

Basting Stitch Options

Built-in Telescoping Thread Stand
Easy thread sef tension
Handlebars

Screen Display

1 Power Switch

Buillin LED fighting

Light Ring

M size bobbin

Rotary Hook

Slitch Counters

Built-in Diagnostics

Cast Aluminum Molding Sewing Head
Language Oplions

Quitt Loading

Eatric. Notions and Yarn Storage 3

comyproducts fmaker-t6-o iting:

30.qt Stormge Bins 12
Swedish Babbin Winder . i N 3

Schacht Plastic Bobbins 24
59 Reviews
Item # SCH-8H5104

tagtic-bobbing. hm!

Sehacht 11* Open Botlom Boat Shuttlas 10
lter

m #
Length 117, Widih 1.875", Height 1.25"
Weight 6 oz,

botlom-boat-shuttles.him|

$499.00

$399.00

$5,995.00

$69.99

$11.98
$170.00

$1.80

$51.00

$3,493.00

$399.00

$5,995.00

$209.97

$143.76
$510.00

$43.20

$510.00

TOTAL FIBER ARTS PROGRAM 511,303 93



SOVAC ARPA Capiltalization Budget

Item

Electric Kiln

Panel upgrade ta current kiln

Element replacement current
Kiln

Slab Roller

Pottery

Pottery

Pottery

Pottery

Silver Fabricated Jewelry

Diamondback digital 1-quart
Ultrasonic clean

Jewelry

Program Vendor

Sheffield
Pottery

Clay King

The Ceramic
Shop

Clay King

Rio Grande

Description Quantity
Jlem # Skutt KMT1027-3 Kikn Package with Vent, Fumiture Kit, and Wi-Fi Touchscresn 1
Controller
Skutt Envirovent 2: INCLURED
Skutt Fumiture Kit: INCLUDED

Lif-Gate Delivery: FREE
Free freight to most places in the lower 43 states. Some restrictions apply in metro, island
and remole destinations.

Specifications

With it's 3 Inch fire brick, it is able ta reach cone 10 in 240 or 208 volt single or 3 phase
time and time again. The KMT1027-3 firing chamber at 6.4 cubic fest provides plenty of
raam far farger stoneware or porcelsin loads, The addition of the Skutt EnviraVent 2 will
hefp get the most from the Kiln's autamatic firing capabilfies. Skutt Kilns Lid LifterAl) Skutt
10 and 12-sided kilns come with a Lid Lifter es a slandard

Skutt KMT1027-3 Single Phase eleclric pottery kiin for residential and commercial pawer.
Chamber; 22-3/8" opening, 27" deep, 6.4 cu. fi.

240V: 48 Amps, 11520 Walts

Cane 10, 2350 degrees. Also availabls in 3 phase models.

240 Volts 48 Amps 11520 Watts

208 Volts 48 Amps 9980 Walts

Copper Wire Size: 6

Breaker Size: 60

NEMA Receptacle Configuration: 6-50

Controller

Controller navigates with jusl a touch of a finger and allows us ta guide you through
programming with full sentancas, helpful icons and dynamic navigation.. Builtin Wi-Fi
makes it possible to download any software feature upgrades for free sa it is ke having &
naw Kiln Controlier for the life of the kiln. A Free App works in conjunction with the Wi-Fi
and allows yau to monitor your Kiln tamperature and status from your smartphone, Think
haow comlorting it will be not to get out of bed to be sure your kiln shut off as expected.
The Hinged Cantrofter allows you to move tha contraller up and down la an angle that is
comfortable for you to program. No more getting on your hands and knees, After
programming you can push it beck dawn so it is out of your way and sasy to view fram
across the room.

Conbroller Featuras

ConeFira Moda - Allows you to easily program the kiln based on the cone value and
whether it is a bisque or glaze firing. Now Il is faster than ever, An aasy ta edit screen lets
you quickly change parameters from the last firing and start the program. You can also
Visw the actual segments in the program and display a greph of tha firing.

Ramp/Hold Programming Made — Allows you to easily inpul your own firing programs.,
Naw you can Nams Your Programs and slare them in My Progrems for easy acvess. You
can even Copy Programs you like, but want to change slightly to speed up the
programming process.

Guided Start - This programming Moda is maant far bsginnars. it guides you through
every slep of the programming process with Helpful Messages to make things crystal
<clear and give you confidenca you have done everything carreclly before you press Start.
Program Library — We have added a program library with helpful programs for unique
processes fike Slow Sculpture, Steven Hill Single Fire, and Cone 5 Crystal Glaze.

Help Screens — Nearty every page has a Help Butlon that will give you datailed
information about the screen yau are currenty viewing. It is like having the manual right
on the controller!

Mare Detailed Diagnostics — We putin place more detailed diagnostic tools which maks it
faster o figura out what may ba gaing on with your kitn. And, because your kiln ia
connected to the intemet our technicians can view the data right from their desk.
Graphing — Whan you press Starl he controller will display a Graph of the firing so you
can follow it along as the kiln goes through the program.

Logging - The controller ackuzlly stores the information from your last 10 firings which
can be downloaded to an Excel Spreadshesl,

Upgrading to KilnLink — Adding KilnLink to your kiln just got easier and more affordable.
“The built-in Wi-Fi eiminatas the naed for axpensive hardware 8o now all you need to do
is pay & minimal monthly data storage and development fee.

y heffield: wiln-kmt1027-3-pack ith-vent
fumiture-skimt10273cs
Skutt KitnMaster Touchscreen Lipgrada Kit with Buill-In WiFi 1

Like Your Smartphona tha naw KMT cantrolier navigates with just a louch of a finger and
allows us o guide you through programming with fuil sentences, hefpful icons, and
dynamic navigation.

Built<n WiFi mekes it possible to download any software feature upgrades for free so itis
like having a new Kiln Coniratier for the IHe of the kiin.

A Fres App warks in conjunclion with the WiFi and aliows you lo monitor your kiln
temperature and status from your smartphone. Think how comforting il will be not to get
out af had to b sure your ki shulof as expected.

The Hinged Controller allows you to move the controller up and down to an angle that is
comfortable for you ta program. No more getting on yaur hands and knees. After
programming you can push it back down 50 it is out of your way and easy to view from
across the roam.

240V-1 Phase 1
Top/Bottam eloment position
Skutt parl #1684

This heavy-duty APM element is for the Skutl KM1027-3", and the K$1027-3%, Make sure
1o sslact the comect vokage and element location.

Etement Location

By brick raw, top to bottom.

Top and Bottom Element

Center Elernent

Center Elament

Center Element

Center Elament

Top and Bottom Element

Heavy=duly slab roller can produce up to & 3" thick 1
slab. Two-roller system evenly distributes prassure

on slab o reduce warping. Dual hand whesls

and thicknass indicetor provide synchronized

fine adjusiment and allow for precise control

of slab thickness. Wagon whee! handle

provides effortless feeding of slab thraugh

rollars in either direction. Large 30" x 50° table.

Comes with one canvas sel.

1 Year Warranty

ITEM #336-221 This 1-quart stainass steal cleanar has a timer adjustable from 0-30
minutes and heat adjustable up (o 158°F (70°C). Basket included; additional baskets are
avallabla {replacement baskats have a somawhat finer mash than the original basket).
Canies a six-month manufacturer's warranty.

1

Product  Installation Total Cost

Cost Cost
$6,100.00 $1,000.00 $7,100.00
$675.00 $500.00 $1,175.00
$165.00 $250.00 $415.00
$1,032.00 $0.00 $1,032.00

TOTAL POTTERY PROGRAM  $9,722.00

$94.87 $94.87



SOVAC ARPA Capitalization Budget

item

DuraBull double barel rotary
tumbler

Smith 2-hose Y manifold for
fuel

Flexshaft
(Grinding/Drilling/Polishing)

Flexshaft Motor Hangars

Soldering tip #00
Fuel hose B

Bench Anvit and Pin

Hammering Plate w/rubber
base

Jewelry

Jewelry

Jewelry

Jewslry

Jowelry

Jewelry

Jewelry

Jewely

Jewelry

Jewelry

Program

Vendor

Rig Grande

Rio Grande

Rio Grande

Rio Grande

Rio Grande

Rio Grande

Rio Grande

Ric Grande

Ric Grande

Rie Grande

Description Quantity Product
Cost

ITEM #336-223 1 $111.96
Descriplion - Handiz medium-sized runs and touch-up work with this dependable Dura-
BULL® lumbler. Twa clear bamrals allow you lo monilor twa separate processes at a ime.
Each barrel has an easy-to-use screw on fid that gives you quick acoess to contents; the
capacily of each barrel is 3 Ibs, of steel shot. No-leak closure rings and nan-siip bells
make the double-barrel tumbler very reliable.
‘Whether you manufaciure hundreds of pieces a week or fill custom orders in a studio
setting, thera's a Dura-BULL® machine far you, Every Dura-BULL machine is madae to
work better, made to last and made in the USA.
Specifications & Features
Altributes Dimensions: 11"W x 8-1/2°D x 7-1/2"H
Vollage: 110 valts
Capacity: 6 bs. (3 ibs. ea.)
Brand: Dura-BULL

hipping Weight: 9.43 (bs (4.277ka)
Features & Maintenance
‘Whenever you replace the barral an your Dura-BULL tumblsr, wipe the fid and gasket
dry, and apply a small amount of O-ring lubricant to tha gaskel after every couple of runs.
This helps prolong the Kfe of the gaskat and helps ensure a good seal withoul over-
tightening.

TEM #500171 3 $67.50
Description: Operate twa tarches from a singla lank and rsgulator with this top-quality,

compadl, sofid brass manifold.

+ Fuel flow ta each torch is controlled by individual needie valves.

= Close off one valve when using a singls torch; open both valves when using two

torches.
- 8168 fitlings

ftem No, 500109NWThis versatite Siiver Smith™ torch systom allows you to accomplish 1 $390.00
almost any lask including saklering and annealing with brass, bronze, copper, goid and

silver, The torch delivers precise flame control. Solder small and delicate items with lhe

included # 00 tip or use the larger tips {available separately) for larger pieces.

- Uses acatylene and atmospheric alr lo produca a flame up to 4,770°F (2,632°C).

+ All-metal with J 9, P chined brass parts that are nicke-

plated for added heat resnuanes

« Metal handle with O-ting-sealed tips for safety and durabiity,

+ Dualgauga ragulator with large, easy-to-read disls and hosa connection (8 ftlings,

9/167ID). Fits B lank wolh CGA 520 wnnscﬂon

20de=500103NW

item Nn 500054 Quality-mada by Smith®, this durable, slHnelannn:h handls leamres [ $66.55
"B fitliny
lor\:h-handlslﬁﬂﬁ(lSdGPl’lcode"SOuosd

Foradom® K.2230 System with SR Motor and H,30® Handpiece 3 $379.62
Nem No. 117534

torchkit-with.

K.2230 kit offers unparalleled quality and includes just about everything you need to gel
to work. Add a motor hanger and yau're ready to ga right aut of the box!

Description
Foredom H.30® chuck-style handpiece accepts tool shank sizes 0" to 5/32° (0—4mm) for
drilling, stone setting, polishing and other applicalions.

SR motor with +/6hp and a maximum spasd of 18,000rpm delivars the extra pawer
needed for continuous preduction, Forward and reverss optians edd even more
vmaumy

plastic-he d, FCT-1 slip-resistant, solid-slate elecronic foot pedal allows
conlml Imm low ta full speed
Flexible shaft with quick-detach makes it easy and efficlant to swilch between most
Foredom handpieces (does not accepl H.30H, H.44HT and H.28H).
43-piece accessory kit with rotating bur and tool holdar, mounted points, wire and bristte
brushes, sanding drums, 3M radial bristle discs, assorted buffs, polishing wheels,
compound, mandrels and flax shaft greass.
The mator and foot control come with a limited two-year wamanty; handpiece comes with
8 90-day warranty.

Attributes

Voltage: 115 volis

Amperage: 1 7 amps

Brand: Fore

Shipping Wetgh( 12,579 Ibs (5.706kg)

Kit'Set Includes
M.SR motar.
« H.30 chuck-styla handpiace.
* FCT plastic-housed faol-cperated speed control,
+ AK-11 43-piece accessory kit, which contains: 8 rotating bur and tool holder, mounted
points, wire and bristle brushes, sanding drums, 3M radial bristle discs, assoried buffs,
polishing whaels, compound, mandrels and flex shaft grease.

" ridoranda fot tor-with

shaft-systems/117534GPI?eode=117534
Flex Shaft Swing-fway™ Motor Stand, 42° Y
ttem No, 117291 3 $26.60

H.30- iecefi

Descriplion

Motor stand allows you to pull your motor teward you while working. When released, the
anm aulomatically swings Ihe motor and shaft out of yaur way. Order extra swing-away
ams to eccommodate as many mators as you need. Swing-away arms are enginasrad 1o
be self-cenlering. Orienl Ihe amis on the sland 1o achieve the desired staggerad heighl
and radius alignment for your molors, The sturdy aluminum pals is 427 fong; the 3-1/4° x
316" base is pra-drified with two countersunk holes that afiow you to securely screw the
stand onto the benchlop (hardware i not included).

Altributes
Dimensions: 42°H x 3-1/4” dia.
Shipping Weight: 3.894 Ibs (1.766kg)

Features & Maintenance

+ This unit includes one SwingAway™ arm; addgitional arms are avallable separately.

« The bushing in the lower pola may shifl aut of pasition during shipping. A narrow band
around the bushing marks where the bushing should align with the top of the lower pole;
please chack that the pasitioning is carract bafora assembling your stand.

ITEM #500155 This tip has & very fine (.070°) arfice far usa with an acetylans and air 3 $41.95
ambient system hitps:/fwww riogrande.

ps/500155GP/
TTEM #500111 A good choica for casting torches or largar brazing systems, this tough, 3 $20.52

durable hose is mado of rinforced rubber and raled to 250psi hiipsiiwwwiogrande.

ITEM #110014 Clamp this finished iron anvil and nardwood pin o your bench or wark 6 $12.75

surface. The anvil is readily at hand for shaping and forming tasks white you work; the

bsnch pin is un-netchad Bnd can be custormn cut to meet your individual needs. Bench

pins attach to your worksurface, The pin helps sacure shaet, wire, companeris for a

varisty of bench lasks. Having the bench pin also helps steady your hands and tools, 50

Yyou can do intricata work in smaif spacas. This bench pin accommodates surfaces up to

1-1/2" thick.
T,

ITEM #111373 This squars stesl bench black sits inside a hard vulcanized rubbar base. 1 $14.99
Use the steel side up as a bench block with 2 noise dampening cushion underneath. Use

the rubbar sida up for a rubber bench block with an exceptionally solid base. The

removable steel black is 2-1/2* x 2-1/2" x 1-7/8"; the rubber base is 3-1/4"

Installation
Cost

Total Cost

$111.96

$202.50

$390.00

$399.30

$1,138.86

$79.80

$125.85

$61.56

$76.50

$14.99



SOVAC ARPA Capitalization Budget

Item Program Vendor

High Pressure Propane Hose  Jewelry Irving
and Ling Installation

High Pressure Propane Line
Splitter

Product
Cost

$39.98

Description Quantity

Cost

NGIN 24Ft High-Pressure Bralded Propane Hose Extension and fitlings with Convarsion 3
Coupling 3/8" Flare ta 1/2" Fomale NPT, 1/4" Male NPT, 3/6" Male NPT, 3/8" Male Flare

for BBQ Grill, Fire PH, Heater

Brand NQN
Color Sliver
Product Dimensions
Maximum Pressure 350 Pound per Square Inch

Outside Diameter 0.38 Inches

Item Length 24 Feel

Manufacturer NGN

MENSI 3 Way Propane Tank Splitter QCC1 Type Rv or Home Prapane Hose Adaptar 1
Allows you lo connect three appliances 1o one tank same cost! Works with POL and

ACME applications for three grills at the same time

3 Way splitter with 100% Solid Brass

All components are assembled well with gas leakage test na tools need

The Splitter Y fittings used to connect regulators to tanks end hoses

288" x 0.38"W

$570.00
$29.99

Installation

Total Cost

$689.97

$29.99

$3.416.15

Creative Metalworking

Plasma cutting table Creative Metalwark Eastwood

Hypertherm Powermax30 XP  Creative Metalwark
Plasma Cutting Hand System
088079

Alrgas

Foatures: 1 $199.99 $0.00
Sturdy, Carbon Steal Construction
Supports Up To 250 fbs.
23 Replaceabla Slats
32Hx 21"W x 30" L
Garage or Shop Cutting Solution
The Eastwood Plasma Cutling Table offers you an industrial solution ta a problem mosl
hobbyists lace when lrying lo cut material with their plasma cutter or gas lorch, Using this
table you can lay your work placa aver tha suppart slats and maka culs with your plasma
cutler or gas torch and not worry about whal to use to support the back side of the
meterial. Tha 250 pound capacity allows you ka lay out even heavy plate stesl, make your
cuts and not worry about pieces falting ta the floor.
Cut and Work at a Gomfortable Height
This slatted-top, sleel cutting table is the place to support your work place whils ptasma-
cutting or wekling—it lets you cut and work al a comforlable height—unlike your concrete
shop floor—and the slat-supporl spacing allows arcs and sparks fram your welder or
plasma cutter (o penatrate.
Replacaabla Table Slals
The Eastwood Plasma Cutling Table uses replacaable cutting slates. The cutting slats
can be tumed over lo reuse.
Warranty
365 days warmrenty.
Specifications
32 inch height x 21 inch width x 3¢ inch length work table
Supports 250 Ib items
23- 1 inch replaceable cutting slats
Assura sals, argonomic plasma culting or wekling
Jow-pl iting-1able htm?
200 - 240V XP Plasma Cutter With 75 Degree Handheld 1 $2,250.00 $0.00

Torch And 20" Lead

Airgas Parl #:HYP088112 / Hypartherm Manufaclurer Part #:088112

Itemn Details

Powermaxd5® XP system, 230V 1-PH, CSA, 75° handheld torch w/consumables, 6.1m

(20') lead. The Powermax45® XP offers improved performance over the Powermax456

with increased cut capacity, faster cut speeds, and aulomatic gas adjustment for simple

setup and operation. New Duramax® Lock torches and consumables support handheld

and machanized cutting of a wider renge of metal thicknesses, precision gouging and

maximum metal removat gouging, and marking for part identification or scoring for weld

preparation. System is 230V 1 - PH, and comes with 75° handheld torch with

consumables and a 20' lead.

Features

Highest kW autput and the widest operaling range, the Powermax45@ XP is the mast

powerful system in its class

High recommended cut capacily plus the highest severance and mechanized pierce

capacities in iis class

Smart Sense™ technology automatically adjusts gas pressure and flow for optimal

performanca A uniqua deslgn protecis the fier from damaga whils aliowing easy Bocess

for maintenance

Largest selection of torch styles, lead lengths, and consumable types, the Powermax45®

XP has the versalility to help you get the job done faster with better rasults

Wide voltage lolerance on either single o Lhree-phase circuits, the Powermaxd5® XP

can operata under varlous powsr conditions

Designed to inlerface with a variety of mechanized devices

FastConnect™ torch faature makes it easy to switch betwsan torch styles for different

applicalions

Supparted procass for cutting and gouging staintess stesl using F5 gas

Designed to provide excellent control for gouging spot welds and for marking or scoring

metal with air or argon gas

Includes

Pawermax45® XP (200-240 V, 1-PH, CSA) / Duramax® Lock 75° Hand Torch Wilh 20

Cables, work laads, consumable kit.

Product Attributes

Trads Names Powermax® » Powermexs5® XP

Input AC Vollages 200V » 240V

Recommended Culling Cepadity » 5/8”

Gas » Argan | Alr | F5 | Nitrogen

Maximum Severance » 1 1/8"

Duty Cycla » 1-PH | 50% @ 41A | 100% @ 32A| 50% @ 45A

Physical Size » 174" X 6.8" X 14.1"

Waight » 31 b
g airoa: /Weldi %26

Cutiers/o/HYPORS112

§199.99

$2,250.00



SOVAC ARPA Capitalization Budget

Item

Compressor

GasFlux Gas Fluxer Reserve
Tank

Office Computer Replacements
Cemputers

Monitors

Program

Creative Metalwork

Creative Metalwork

Office

Vendor

The Home
Depot

Amazon

Amazon

Description

About This Product
The DEWALT 15 Gal. Portatils Elactric Air Compressor is ideal for sanding with a dual-
action sander {nat included), fastening with impact wrenches and ratchst wrenches (not
included) and lacquer spraying using a spray gun (not includad). The air compressor
fealures a strong 1.6 HP electric engine and a durable steel tank. The air compressars
pump is oil- and maintenance free for convenience. Aulcmatic start/stop operation and a
dual-purpose handle make the air compressor easy to use,

Product Information

225 PS1 maximum pressure enables long alr-toal run time

Delivers S SCFM at 30 PSI for quick recovery time

Iniemet # 302918678

Model # D55168

Store SKU # 1002718554

Dimensions: Depth 20.5 in, Height 42,75 in, Width 16.708 in

Air Delivery SCFM @ 40PSI 5 Air Delivery SCFM @ 90PSI S

Amperage (A) 15A

Comprassor Tank Capacity (gal} 15 gl

Compressor Type Industrial

Compressor Volume Rating Quiet

ComprassorfAir Tool Features Handls, Ol Frea Compressor, Tank Pressure Gaug,
Wheels

Condition New

Decibel Rating {Outdoor) 78 dBA

Hersapowar (hp) 1.6 hp

Maximum Pressure (PSI) 225 PSI

Portable:Yes

Power Source Electric

Pawar Type Corded Elactric

High-pressura motor with consistent drew requirements can be run with a 12-Geuge or
higher extension cord that is under 50 i,

Product Weight (Ib.) 92 b
Reconditioned No

Stage Counl Single Stege

Tank Materia) Steel

Tank Style Vartical

Tools Product Type Air Compressor
Voltage {V) 120 V

D55168/302018678

Model § Gasfluxer® The Gasflux® Process utilizes equipment to dispense Liquid
Gasflux® with the fuel gas. The Gasfluxer® consists of & mixing chamber and  reserve
tank for flux storage. The unit can be easily added to any exlsting manual or automatic
brazing installation and does not require speciaf torches, tips or unusual connections.
The Model $ Gasfluxer® incorporates the use of round sight glass and allows all fuel gas
1types 1a be used including acetylena.

The Gasflux Company manufactures a series of Gasfluxers® for specific manual torch
‘operation or automatic brazing machinary.

All Gasfluxers® have a vaive adjusiment to regulate the amount of Gasflux® introduced
into the flame.

The units listed bekow are our “base” Models and additional features can be added to suit
one's particular brazing application,

Please consult with The Gasfhux Company for any added features to the base Models,

1 T-15-Gal-Portable-ElactricAir-C

Fluxer Height Specifications
Fuel Gas Type - All Types
Manual/Automatic Brazing - Both Number of Torches for Manusl Brazing -2 to 8 Manual
Torches
Automatic Brazing Application - Yes - Multiple gasfluxers may be required depending on
the number of burners
Working Capacity - 120 ft¥h
Maximum Fuel Gas Pressura -15 psig
Reserve Tank Capacity - 5 gal
Fluxer Empty Weight - 78 Ib
Fluxer Height 33 in/ Diameter 10 in
Thread Size 1.00 In Conneaction Type Female NPT 100%
Bypass Capability - Yes
Industry Standards/Centiflcations - UL
oasflux i with *15 Gal
Portable Electric Air Compressor

Lenava

Thinkped E15 Business Laptop, 15.6" FHD IPS Display, Intel Core i7-10510U, 32GB
RAM Memory, 178 PCle NVMe SSD, Webcam, Zoom Mesting, Windows 10 Pro, Black
Display Size 15.6 inches

Disk Size 1 TB

32GB
Operating System Windaws 10 Pro
oy rvLe f

tios

Slloadal U INGZIL
BO! P

Y YWOI( en inkpad+] +Buziness+ aotop 9
22+FHD+IPS+Display%2C+ Inlgl+Core+i7-10510U%2C+32GB+RAM+Mamory®%
2G +1TB+PCle:NYMe+ SS0%2C+Wabramti2C+Zoor+Meelina%

1
v+, 3p5%2C" 3

ViewSanic
'VX3276-MHD 32 Inch 1080p Widescrean IPS Manitar with Ulira-Thin Bezels, Screen
Splil Capabilty HDMI and DisplayPort

Display Size 32 inches
Refresh Rate B0 hertz
Resolution FHD 1080p
Response Time 8 milkseconds
/W, amazon, TewSonic-VX3276-MHD-Frameless-Widegcreen:

Quantity Product Installation

Cost Cost
1 $399.00 $0.00
1 $1,200.00 $0.00

Total Cost

$399.00

$1,200.00

TOTAL CREATIVE METAL PROGRAM  $4,048.99

2 $988.77

3 $169.99

$1,977.54

$509.97



SOVAC ARPA Capltallzation Budget

item

Air Purifier

Air Conditioner

Program

Workspaces

Workspaces

Vendor

Amazon

Amazon

Description

Alr Purifiers for Homs Large Roam 2000 Ft* with Washabls Filters, Fragrance Spangs,
MOOKA H13 HEPA Filter Pet Air Purifier for Bedroom, Air Cleaner for Smake Dust Pollen
Pets Hair Odor, Style: KJ180L

Golor  White

Brand MQOKA

Product Dimensions 8,1"Dx 12.2"W x 15.75°"H

Specificalion Met ETL FCC CARB EPA DOE Certified

Noise Level 20dB

QUTivxaYmsRB PNr_swrkZvSE huxigyYh4 j YOy

A,

hyOZXe_IANRI1E(Z) ZBTPOCUKOWERO41Kd35cl O184dib,

Ifier+ alrockel&gld=1724785885As=h: i alrockelt

2Cgarden%2C858sr=1-14
12000 BTV Porlable Air Conditionars far Room up to 500 sq.f1, 3-IN-1 Quiet Cooling
Portable AC Unit with Fan & Dehumidifier Functian, 24H Timer Sieep Mode, Remote
Control & Windows Kit Inctuded

com/KA

L1 wdhcGkA0OISATEBCOPD Vb 1N ToAUloMezgN_GfH0ZKE DWgQrGsRH
-_sk‘z.-m?‘m'}g‘aszsngm‘.ir;}-q.-|;~,§\ TERAEO OO G 2L o LSS STy
0ok S
QebifikYHy SOl HS TS75rdW hGIYDYEXZVBIE ZCoSynpdWiey-
= e Patel - %281 b

Quantity

2

Product Installation  Total Cost

Cost Cost
$155.98 $311.96
$359.99 $1,439.96

TOTAL OFFICE EQUIPMENT  $4,239.43
TOTAL GRANT REQUEST  $32,730.50



<~ VERMONT

DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR AND LOTTERY
DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL

Application ID: DLL - Application - 46259
Application for: Third Class Restaurant/Bar License

Category of Business:  Third Class

Business/ Entity Information

Business/ Entity Name: Business ID:

Blue Duck Deli, LLC 0409956

Business Address: Entity Type:

117 Main Street, Limited Liability Corporation

Ludlow, Vermont 05149
Management Type if LLC:

Phone: Member-managed
4349416195

Email:
blueduckdeli@gmail.com

People Information

® Person:
Rebecca Prasse

Business Role: Email:
Business Principal blueduckdeli@gmail.com
Business Address: US Citizen?
117 Main Street, . i
Ludlow, Vermont, 05149 Political Position
Phone: Name: Rebecca Prasse
Office:
Jurisdiction:
Violations:
Violation ID Court/Traffic Bureau Offense Date of Offense
® Person:

Craig Kovalsky

Business Role: Email:



Member/Manager

Business Address:
117 Main Street,
Ludlow, Vermont, 05149

blueduckdeli@gmail.com

US Citizen?
Yes

Political Position

Phone:
8456643278 Name: Craig Kovalsky
Office:
Jurisdiction:
Violations:
Violation ID Court/Traffic Bureau | Offense Date of Offense

Location/ Premises Detail

Location Name:
Blue Duck Deli Main

Location Address:
117 Main Street,
Ludlow, Vermont 05149

Local Jurisdiction/ Town Clerk:
Ludlow

Do you lease this Premises:

Health License:
Food:14395
Lodging:

Vermont Tax Department:
11243744

Education Details

Student Name:
Rebecca Prasse

Mode of Training:
DLC Online Training

Training Completion Date:
Mon Jun 24 00:00:00 GMT 2024

Type of Training:
First Class (On Premise)

Foundational License (if applicable)

License Type:
Licensee Name:

Licensee Address:

Documents Attached

License Number:

License Status:

License Start Date:

License End Date:

Name Document Type

-Assosicated With

Meals & Rooms Tax Certificate

'D-06699

LN-025775




D-06700 Federal Employee Identification # Blue Duck Deli, LLC
'D-06701 Articles of Organization Blue Duck Deli, LLC
D-06702 Lease or proof of ownership \ LN-025775
D-07008 Lease or proof of ownership LN-025775
D-17927 | Operating Agreement | Blue DlilvckmDeIi, LLC
D-17928 Health License LN-025775
D-17929 Proof of Worker Compensation Insurance Blue Duck Deli, LLC
D-06699 Meals & Rooms Tax Certificate LN-025775
D-06702 Lease or proof of ownership LN-025775
|D-07008 Lease or proof of ownership LN-025775
'D-17928  |Health License LN-025775

Signed by:

Rebecca Prasse State of Vermont / DLL Application Fee:

1095.00

Date of Submission:
2024-07-09 20:21:21 State of Vermont / DLL Payment Status:

Local Application Fee: Local Control Payment Status:
0 false



LUDLOW ROTARY CLUB
- P O.Box 216« Ludiow, VT 05149-0276
www . ludiowrotary.com

Club #6477
District #/870

August 21, 2024

Village of Ludlow

c/o Brendan McNamara, Town Manager
PO Box 359

Ludlow, VT 05149

Dear Brendan:

The Ludlow Rotary Club is requesting permission from the Village Trustee’s for Depot Street to
Pleasant Street be closed to vehicular traffic for the annual chili cook-off.

The date for this event is October 12, 2024, from 7 a.m. to approximately 3 p.m.

We would also like to ask that the Depot Street parking be marked as “reserved” on Friday
evening for this event (from Ellison lot entrance to the Hatchery corner).

We thank you for your time and look forward to hearing from you soon.

Sincerely,
LUDLOW ROTARY CLUB

KL Lampert

Kim Lampert
Rotarian

cc: Kevin Barnes, George Thomson

Organized & Chartered by Rotary International in 1927




Sarving Windham
& Wingdsor Counties

CR 55 IMTER INT' O

FLEL AS5i8T0NIT

SNAMNCIA | FITNEYS

PO STAMY

DLTRE AL
HIAD START
FlOMEZ REPAT

ADPATLESEMESS
PRIVINTION

ADUSIMG ASSISTANCE
LB RIADMESS

#FATIHED SAVIVGS

ATCOUNT:

MUTR D BUSINESS

SUPPDRT

T AFT STORIS

W LUMTEER | 4208 I TAY

AS3ISTanTE

T D 7AT A
HIATHIRZATION

PISARFORIE
DIVILO2MENT

91 Buck Drive
Westminster
Vermont 05158
802.722.4575
800.464.9951
Fax 802.721.0000
sevca@sevca.org
WWW.SeVCA.org

Y Mecting Needs Changing Lives
SYSEVCA

June 13, 2024

Diane Knight, Municipal Clerk
Town and Village of Ludlow
PO Box 307

37 Depot St.

Ludiow, VT 05149

Dear Ms. Knight and Ludlow Selectboard Members;

The Board of Directors of Southeastern Vermont Community Action, Inc. (SEVCA) is
hereby requesting that the Ludlow Selectboard appoint Ms. Patricia Archambault - a Ludlow
resident living at 61 Andover Street — as its representative to the SEVCA Board in the Public
Sector.

Ms. Archambault is presently a full-time Ludlow resident, and has been a part-time
resident for several decades. Child Development is one of Pat's interests and she previously
served 16 years on a local school board. She currently volunteers to ski with two local schools
through the Okemo ski school program. Pat is a strong advocate of community involvement
and engagement. She was recently elected as the VP of Ludlow's Okemo Valley Womens'
Club. Pat's experiences in the business sector and the academic sector, along with her sense
of community, make her a welcomed member to SEVCA's Board. Pat was recently appointed
to the SEVCA board for a three-year term, from 2024 to 2027. We respectfully request that
she be appointed to serve on SEVCA's board from now until September 30, 2027 as the
Ludlow Selectboard representative in the Public sector.

SEVCA's Board is made up of three sectors — Public, Private, and Client
Representative. Members of the Public Sector can be currently-serving elected officials,
someone designated by an elected official to represent that individual, or, as in this case,
someone appointed to represent a publicly-elected body such as the Brattleboro Selectboard.

Please let us know if you have any questions. We appreciate your consideration of
our request and your willingness to support SEVCA's services for Ludiow’s residents by
having a representative on our Board.

| look forward to hearing from you soon.

Sincerely,
7 ’
ol 4 2 P
Tammie L.F. Putnam
ffp Executive Assistant
Cc: Patricia Archambault



Vermont 250% Anniversary Commission

Deane C. Davis Building, 6t Floor

One National Life Drive, Montpelier, VT 05620-0501

2 5 G www.accd.vermont.gov/historic-preservation/american-revolution-250th

ANNIVERSARY

VERMONT

August 8, 2024
Dear Vermont Community:

This is a reminder that the 250th anniversary of the Declaration of Independence is coming. In 2020,
Governor Scott established the Vermont 250th Anniversary Commission (VT250th) to plan,
encourage, develop, coordinate, and promote observances and activities to be held in Vermont in
commemoration of the historic events associated with the American Revolution.

To this end, the VT250th Commission will begin commemorations in 2025 with the capture of Fort
Ticonderoga and Crown Point, and finish in 2027 with Vermont’s signature anniversary year marking
the founding of Vermont and the campaign of 1777, which included the battles of Hubbardton and
Bennington. This commemorative milestone is an important time that provides the perfect platform to
take stock of where we have been and to enable planning for our future.

This three-year anniversary period will allow all Vermont communities to share their histories, which
include stories more diverse than are commonly known and can serve to unify all Vermonters. The
VT250th Commission encourages every community to take part, no matter how big or small the
event(s) or activities. How each town and city commemorate its history will be decided by your
community.

We invite you to join us as we commemorate the American Revolution and come together to mark the
250 years since the founding of our state and nation and our continuing march toward a more perfect
Union by adopting a resolution to be part of the 250th anniversary. A template has been provided for
your consideration. The resolution declares that your town or city officially establishes a VT250th
liaison or local committee made up of a diverse group of citizens to work with VT250th Commission
on any events and activities related to the 250th anniversary.

This will ensure your town or city to be directly involved in the work of the VT250th Commission, as
well as bring attention to the upcoming anniversaries for your community and help build awareness of
the important role that Vermont and your town or city has contributed to our shared histories.

To date, the following towns, villages and cities have already adopted a resolution to be a part of the
250th anniversary commemoration:

Barnet * Bennington ¢ Canaan * Danville « East Montpelier * Franklin * Granville
Landgrove ¢ Lincoln * Londonderry « Lyndon « Manchester « Middlebury « Newark
Pomfret » Pownal Rochester « Shaftsbury « Strafford » Sunderland « Tunbridge « Wallingford
Washington Wilmington * Windsor * Winhall

We look forward to working with your town or city as you envision and implement a meaningful
commemoration for your community for these upcoming anniversary years!

Megan Albert, VT250th Anniversary Coordinator
Megan.albert(@partner.vermont.gov




Vermont 250" ANNIVERSARY RESOLUTION

A resolution of the Town of Ludlow, State of Vermont, supporting the Vermont 250" Anniversary Commission;

WHEREAS, Vermont Governor Phil Scott signed an executive order to create the Vermont 250" Anniversary Commission
on December 15, 2020, to plan, encourage, develop, coordinate, and promote observances and activities to be held in
Vermont in commemoration of the historic events associated with the 250th anniversary of the 1776 signing of the
Declaration of Independence, the Revolutionary War between 1775 and 1777, the founding of Vermont in 1777, and the
creation of the political foundations of the United States of America;

WHEREAS, the Vermont 250" Anniversary Commission hopes to engage all 252 cities and towns through their many
programs, projects, and events over the next several years, thereby inspiring future leaders and celebrating Vermonters’

contributions to the nation over the last 250 years;

WHEREAS, by adoption of the Vermont 250" Anniversary Commission, we hope to inspire Vermonters to learn from
the history, legacy, and context of the past to build stronger communities for the future.

RESOLVED, the Town of Ludlow officially establishes a liaison or local committee made up of a diverse group of citizens
or individual to work with the Vermont 250th Anniversary Commission on any or all activities. The participant(s) of the

Town of Ludlow are voluntary roles and there will be no compensation for participation.

RESOLVED, Town of Ludlow may provide funding for planning or implementation of 250" related commemorations in
their community or region as available.

RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be sent to the Vermont 250® Anniversary Commission.

ADOPTED by the Select Board of the Town of Ludlow, the State of Vermont, this 2nd day of September, 2024.

Mayor/Town Manager/Select Board , Chairperson

, V. Chair

, Member

, Member

_, Member_

, Municipal Mgr.




	Select Board Agenda September 2, 2024.pdf
	SKM_C550i24082815310.pdf

